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L) CORPORATE INFORMATION AT &

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman)

LEUNG Wai Fung (Group Managing Director)
WHANG Sun Tze, Ph.D.

LO Kwong Chi, Clement

TAN Lim Heng

TSANG Cho Tai

DING Wai Chuen

IRIE Yasuaki
IKEDA Hiromi — alternate director to IRIE Yasuaki

COMPANY SECRETARY

CHENG Man Ying

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITORS

PKF
Certified Public Accountants

REGISTERED OFFICE

21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

DATE OF INCORPORATION

13 May 1961

DATE OF LISTING ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED

30 October 1972
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AT &%}

STOCK CODE

4

SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited
Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor, AlA Tower, 183 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

INTERNET WEBSITES

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group
http://www.lamsoon.com

Haomama.com Club

Hong Kong
http://www.haomama.com
Mainland China
http://www.haomama.com.cn

Detergent Division
http://www.love2clean.com

Edible Oil Division
http://www.lamsoonoil.com

Flour Division
http://www.hkflourmills.com

Lam Soon e-Bidding
http://ebidding.lamsoon.com

Hong Leong Group
http://www.hongleong.com
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Turnover (continuing operations) (HKS million)
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Year ended 30 June

BEAA=tTHLEE

(HKS million) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(B EHET) —EBEN\FE —ZTTLF —EERF —ZTTRFE —TIENF
Continuing operations BT TR
Turnover EERE 2,094 1,569 1,507 1,478 1,450
GP% ER= 16% 19% 20% 18% 20%
Profit before taxation BRF B A 112 93 72 53 29
Taxation (expenses)/

income BiE (), RA (11) 9 7) (37) (14)
Profit for the year from REEHELE

continuing operations EREEREF 101 102 65 16 15
Discontinued operation E#RIFIFE K
Profit for the year froma ZAREEDRILLE

discontinued operation EBREENER 6 8 46 54 39
Net gain on disposal ofa ~ HEBKILEE

discontinued operation EBFF 9 — — — —
Profit for the year REERF 116 110 111 70 54
Minority interests DEBRRER 2 — (8) (5) (6)
Profit attributable to

shareholders of the EATIRE

Company FE{G = F 118 110 103 65 48

At 30 June
~A=+H

(HKS million) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(BEET) “ETN\FE —TTtF ETRF ZTTRF —TTNF
Total assets s 1,738 1,712 1,734 1,756 1,741
Total liabilities e (466) (514) (623) (737) (802)
Minority interests PDEIRRER (17) (86) (85) (79) (67)
Equity attributable to

shareholders of the EATIRE

Company FEIETERR 1,255 1,112 1,026 940 872

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Key Financial Indicators

FEMBER
At 30 June
~A=+H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZEEN\E —TEtF —TERF —ZTRF —TTNF
Earnings per share (HKS) SRER (B T) 0.49 0.45 0.42 0.27 0.20
Dividend per share (HKS) BRIRE (B#T) 0.15% 0.14* 0.13* 0.13%* 0.06*
Net Debt to Equity FEEREERLE 0% 0% 0% 3% 13%
Note 1 * Dividends for 12 months ended 31 December 2003 Mat T * BEz_EE=F+=-A=+—8
L+ —ERAZRE
** Dividends for 18 months ended 30 June 2005 ** BE-ZZRFEAAZ=Z1+HL
T/ ERZRE
# Dividends for 12 months ended 30 June 2006, 30 June # BE-ZEZFEAA=1tH =
2007 and 30 June 2008 ZELEERAZTHR=ZEN
FRAZTBHEET=ERAZRE
Note 2 The change of financial year end from 31 December to 30 June BtaE2 B EEAERE-SEENE 2 BREE

commenced from the year 2004. The 5-Year Financial Summary

based on the old financial year end is on page 184 for easy

reference.

BHET-ZA=t—-—HHEARAA<A=+tH &
REIMERREVNRFESAEHZRESF
MBBRUESE -
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I am pleased to report that the Group had further strengthened its
business portfolio to produce a steady profit for the year despite
facing a challenging period of rapidly rising raw material costs
and inflation. During the year, general economic conditions were
weakened by surges in global prices of commodities. China suffered
double digit inflation compelling the government to impose price
control of several basic consumer products including edible oil in
February 2008. At the same time, labour cost went up significantly
following the implementation of new labour laws in China. These

put heavy pressure on our operating margins.

With our steady shift to producing higher quality products, we were
able to grow in tandem with the increasing demand for premium
branded products in China as living standards improve with rising
affluence. We are encouraged to see that with the spreading
wealth effect, the second and third tier cities in China are now also
experiencing faster growth for both food and non-food consumer

products.

We believe our strategy to focus on the higher quality branded
segment leveraging on several of our Group’s prestigious
brands have been timely to meet this period of challenges and

opportunities.

Business Review

Our core businesses in flour, edible oil, and detergent continue
to achieve growth in the Hong Kong and Mainland China market.
This is being accomplished through continuous investment in
developing innovative products and new marketing channels in the
eastern and northern cities in China where we had achieved a 19%

sales growth during the year.

Our flag-ship brands, including Golden Statue bread flour,
American Roses cake flour, Knife edible oil, Red Lantern edible
oil, AXE and Labour detergent achieved 38% sales growth during
the year. Turnover of our six premium core brands had increased
from 33% to 40% of the Group’s total turnover. Mainland China
accounted for 76% of our total turnover. The better margin
contribution of these premium products had enabled the Group
to maintain its midteen gross profit margin despite the pressure
from rising raw material costs. Renminbi appreciation also provided

positive impact on our operating margin.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Business Review (continued)

To facilitate our expansion beyond southern China, our new
production plant for flour at Qingzhou, Shandong is now under
construction which when completed in early 2009 will supply more
cost effectively to our customers in northern China. It is located
at one of the highest quality wheat producing regions in China.
Besides, this region is home to many multinational food companies
which use higher quality premium flour for their products. The
Qingzhou mill, in its first phase, will have capacity for wheat
processing for 500 metric tons daily using modern advanced Buhler
equipment from Sweden. With the addition of this Qingzhou mill
serving the northern China region we will then have three flour
production centres. Our Yixing mill will handle customer needs in
the eastern China region and our Shekou mill will supply to the
southern China region. These three localised mills will provide more
efficient delivery service and serve better the needs of customers

in their respective regions.

During the year we had, after careful review, exited our non-
core packaging business at an opportune time. This cash-sale
strengthens our balance sheet and provides additional financial

resources for expansion in our core operations.

Financial Results

The Group achieved a net profit of HK$116 million for the year
which was 5% better than last year. The turnover for continuing
operations increased by 33% to HK$2,094 million. Basic earnings

per share of continuing operations is HK$0.42 same as last year.

The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.09
per share, which together with the interim dividend of HK$0.06
already paid would result in a total dividend for the year of HK$0.15
per share (HK$0.14 per share for the year ended 30 June 2007).

B Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Prospects

We are pushing forward with our next phase of growth capitalising
on our more than 50 years of heritage and our established
reputation for high quality food products that have been well
received in Hong Kong and in the ever increasing discerning
markets in Mainland China. We recognise the threats posed
by rising raw material and operating costs in the region and
will endeavour to improve our productivity to cope with these

challenges.

Appreciation

I thank my fellow directors for their contribution and support
throughout the year. | would like to express my appreciation for
the hard work and commitment of our management and staff
whose efforts and dedications to performance excellence made
the Group’s achievements possible. | would also like to thank our
customers, bankers and shareholders whose confidence in us
has enabled the Group to move forward to the next phase of our

growth into a premier food company.

KWEK Leng Hai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 September 2008

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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1) CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS EEE 4=

CORPORATE EVENTS #£[E;E8)

MARCHING INTO A NEW ERA
BEHLT

HONOURS AND AWARDS %8 & 818

* August 2008 — “Golden Statue” & “American Roses” flour
was nominated as official flour for 2008 Beijing Olympic
Games

* 200888 — [/ RIEZHE|EHEA-ZEZNFLER
RESRETERY

* May 2008 — LS Food Supply (Macau) Company Limited
commenced business in Macau
* %F)OBESH — LSEmMEECRPM)BRA BRI EX R AR

* November 2007 — Brands launching ceremony of Lam
Soon Hong Kong Group held in Beijing

*2007F 11 B — RUEFERTHIEEBEEREHERHE

GLORIOUS HISTORY IN HONOURS AND AWARDS

HEEE REHE

The Group continues to strengthen its equities by achieving various honours and awards on its

management standard and core brands.

FEBEHEERERZ O MmE LRSS EKERRIT - LTEMREEE -

* August 2008 — [JJBEGo! ##E4 E | was awarded Merit
Award of “TVB Most Popular TV Commercial Awards 2008
(Info-service)”

* 200858 8 — [JJEEGo! #IBEAIE |54 2008 TVB & Z B
EREEAR(EMART) BER

* June 2008 — Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products
Limited was presented Green Medal of “Pearl River Delta
Environmental Awards”

* 20086 — EMBIESZARERARAER KR=ARRKRK
R|zEeRE

* February 2008 — Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited was
awarded the “Caring Company and Caring Organization
2007/08”

* 200828 — BMIE(EB)BRAAKEN2007-08% R EF

1 15
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HONOURS AND AWARDS (continued) 255 R 581E (&)

o

2007

THE BEST BRAND EXTERFRESE WWARD

inmaErELn

sEEm
HONG HONG
TOP BRAND

m"

o8 A

REFFERD

T

June 2007 — Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company,
Limited was awarded “The Best Brand Enterprise Award
2007 (Greater China)”

20076 A — RYImIEHEARA REE HERIRmEE
#2007 (KRHPER) |

June 2007 — Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company
Limited was awarded “Certificate Award for the Best Brand
Enterprise 2007 (Greater China)”

20076 A — WOMIEEMERLATERE B EERBEHE
2007 (KHER) |

February 2007 — Our Group accredited “ACCA Approved
Employer”

20072 A — AEERFRBFHALARSTM AR AEE ]
2004 to 2010 — Golden Statue was awarded “The China
Top Brands” by Quality Surveillance Inspection in China
2004 FE2010F — EMEEREEEERRREERER
[HPE#ERE ]

September 2006 — Knife was awarded “10 Favorite
Brands” by Wellcome Supermarket

2006598 — IEREFEERTSER0OKED B
Awarded “Hong Kong Top Brand” by The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and Hong Kong
Brand Development Council jointly

ErhEREBeakeinEERAHMAI TR B ]

2005 — Labour &I &

2004 — American Roses E}&

2003 — Golden Statue &}

2002 — Red Lantern AL 4%

2000 — AXE £l

1999 — Knife JJ s

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (&#&)ARAT —SENEER
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HONOURS AND AWARDS (continued) 4858 % 5818 (&

Superbrands

* B AR AR AR

2005/2006 — AXE £ FE &

2002/2003 — Lam Soon and Knife & JIE & JJ B

* “Super Brand Award” Gold Prize
*[ERmE &R

* “Trusted Brand Award” Gold Prize
*EERE ISR

1999 — 2006 — Knife JJBE

* “Web Care Award” by Internet Professional Association
* HERREX A S ERE BEREE P PR

— www.haomama.com
2005, 2006 and 2007-08 (Gold Prize & #g), 2004
(Secondary Level Award #EPE#K3E), 2002 (Primary Level
Award E—# %)

— www.haomama.com.cn
2005 and 2006 (Gold Prize &%), 2004 (Primary Level
Award 25 —#12)

— www.lamsoon.com
2007-08 (Excellence Prize £ifi#€), 2006 (Gold Prize &
#2), 2005 (Silver Prize #R%€), 2004 (Primary Level Award
FE—RE)

— www.hkflourmills.com
2007-08 (Gold Prize £€), 2005 and 2006 (Silver Prize
$R88), 2004 (Primary Level Award 5 —#38)

— www.lamsoonoil.com
2006 (Gold Prize &#2), 2005 (Silver Prize $R%2)

— www.love2clean.com
2005 and 2006 (Silver Prize $R#2)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FMJE(E#B)GRAT —ZZ)\FEER
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HONOURS AND AWARDS (continued) 4552 R H81E (&

QUALITY CERTIFICATION

e =4
. So8

e Ememeomm o
———
—_——
—

j 2

W

*

*

*

*

*

ISO 9001:2000 Certification

ISO 9001:2000 #2 AR H

— Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited
L&k EEEAD B R A A

— Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products Limited
EMNEIESZARERAT

— Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company, Limited
wYIEE EShAE B PR A A

— Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited
YO EEED B R AR

ISO 14001:2004 Certification in Environmental Management

ISO 14001:2004 IRIZE R R RAE

— Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products Limited
EMNEIESZARERQT

— Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited

SO IEEHERAH

HACCP Food Safety Certification

RmZ2EERADAEESE

— Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited
L&k EEEAD B R A F)

— Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company, Limited
Y EEHBE R R A F)

— Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited
€ M F AT R B BR 4 B

China Environmental Labelling Certification
PR IBIR E Mo at e =
Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products Limited

BEMNEIEERARERLDE

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (&#&)ARAT —SENEER
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COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION AND SPONSORSHIP # & & 2\ 2558

CONTRIBUTION TO THE SOCIETY AND CREATE BRIGHT FUTURE TOGETHER

EfEH & HERIARK

- ol o |
-

!

s

Mos =

August 2008 — “Fortune Bags Charity-Selling Project”
fund-raising event jointly organized with The Boys’ and
Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong

* 20088 H —HEBNENRIEW REEREETE

* May 2008 — Donation to Sichuan province in southwest
China for earthquake victims
* 200858 —EPEAEBILIIIEHELRFBRE

* January 2008 — 2007/2008 Hong Kong and Kowloon Walk
for Millions held by The Community Chest
* 20081 A — AmeH{T22007/2008 BE R NEEBBET

* November 2007 — Sponsored “The 2nd China Hotel
System Pastry Competition” organized by China Hotel
Association

*2007F 11 A — BYHESHREHBEEIRNIE_EZEHRER
REEARE ]

PRODUCT PROMOTION AND EXHIBITION ESEERRE

REACHING OUR CUSTOMERS AND CONSUMERS

HERRBHER

* May 2008 — “The 11th China International Trade Fair for
Bakery and Confectionery” held in Shanghai
* 200858 —REBREGIET - ETEEREERES ]

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 MJE(E#)ARAT —ZSZ)\EER
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PRODUCT PROMOTION AND EXHIBITION (continued) EEmEERRE (&

* May 2008 — “Mini - Yoga Training for the Mothers”
promotion activities of Knife held in Shenzhen
* 20(;8?@?)3 — JJEERRYIE T i IS s w0 AR T ee By | R

* May 2008 — Participated in “The 4th China International
Exhibition of Olive Qil and Edible Qil”
* 200858 — 2N ENEFEEREAHRBEHREES

May 2008 — Flour division participated in the event of

“Cheung Chau Bun Festival” at Cheung Chau, HKSAR

* gzo%siSH — EHIMSERNETBRMNBITHRMAFEE]
m =

* December 2007 — “Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo
2007” held in Victoria Park, Hong Kong
* 2007128 — REBESFDAERIT2007 FEEBIR

=]

* 2006/2007 — Knife Brand full range olive oil is endorsed
by Spanish Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong as the
“Recommended Olive Oil of Span in Hong Kong”

* 2006/2007 — JIEHERERATERMTHFER TR EE
[ A9 78 JE 2F 5 RE A O

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (&#&)ARAT —SENEER
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AMERICAN ROSES

GOLDEN STATUE KNIFE & BRAND
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Food Segment

Food Segment had achieved 37% growth in sales to
HK$1,569 million, and 8% growth in operating profits to
HK$81 million resulting mainly from its continuous focus
on branded premium products and strategic markets in
Mainland China.

In Hong Kong, Lam Soon Food Industries Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, had in June
2008 accepted the termination notice from Hop Hing
Group for our edible oil joint venture company, Evergreen
Oils & Fats Limited (“Evergreen”). Upon termination of
this joint venture on 30 June 2009, we will take up the
edible oil business carried out by Evergreen in relation
to the products of the Group unless ongoing discussion
can arrive at a mutually beneficial arrangement with Hop
Hing Group going forward.

Its premium core brands, Knife Brand, Red Lantern, and
Soon Brand edible oil as well as Golden Statue bread
flour and American Roses cake flour achieved a total sales
growth of 46%.

Turnover — Food segment (HKS million)

BXEE —REMWOEEFET)
1,600 1,569

1,400

1,200

1,000

800

600

400

200

0

2007 2008

R EB

HREBEEEEIEEREERNPBEAEREMETS &
T 502 $H 1 R 1 37% & 78 15 1,569,000,000 7T ¢ LA K
KT R 1 8% =885 81,000,000 T ©

EHE B XKD T z2E &K B2 S Lam Soon Food
Industries Limited A—Z2ENE XA ESSEEFEH
HEAEENRAEE LT — REDBERLATITRERED
R ILEEBH - EZEAEARNRZEZENEASA=TAH
HBIEE s BRIETREEIWEERSEEBER A REHRE
FNZHE  TEBBREARENSAEBRMETS -

AEENROEEREEEIE - ALEEMNEER KRS
BRI MEBEREID 2 RSB RE46% °

Operating profit — Food segment (HKS million)
mERY — RIPWOEHKFTET)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS % %5[olE SO@ON

Detergent Segment BEAmaE

Detergent segment had achieved 32% sales growth during the RAFER FEARIBZEHERLRE
year. It had further expanded its sales network in the eastern and 32% @ 7 BRPHE —H AP B KRR AR AL FB itk &
northern regions of Mainland China. In addition, the segment had BERHEETIS o Iid 2 HCHBHERU
developed new products to meet the increasing demand of the MEDERFEHBESX

institutional customers.

-

@-

Turnover — Detergent segment (HKS million) Operating profit — Detergent segment (HKS million)
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Distribution Segment Emn s E

The segment had achieved 21% growth in sales, and 4% growth in DEHZHEHERREENWURKEE ZRIERE
operating profit. It had managed to increase selling prices gradually 4% > DB BBEL RS EB UK HERMBRAE
to offset the impact of rising costs from raw materials, inflation, and R BEEYERNAREHEZZE -

Renminbi appreciation.

Packaging Segment BREQTE

The Group had successfully divested this non-core business on 28 REBR=-ZZSEENEFE-A=+N\H  URKREE
February 2008 to a third party at a consideration of US$53.5 million JT 53,500,000 JT (£ 78 ¥£ 417,000,000 7T ) B 31 H
(approximately HK$417 million). A net gain of HK$9 million was ERFZROEBFE=H - FEBRZEEE
realised by the Group from the disposal. B 1S FRH% % 9,000,000 7T °

Turnover — Distribution segment (HKS million) Operating profit — Distribution segment (HKS million)
= — EEon (G T L& — EEon (G T
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Human Resources and Training

As at 30 June 2008, there were approximately 1,200 employees in
the Group. The Group remunerates its employees in accordance
with the nature of their duties and responsibilities, as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Annual increment and year-end
performance bonus mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s
remuneration policy to retain, reward and motivate individuals
for their contributions to the Group. The Company also operates a
Share Option Scheme for granting of options to eligible employees.

There were 3,700,000 outstanding share options as at 30 June 2008.

Relation with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites for
the Group and several of its subsidiaries in providing a wide range

of information on the Group and its businesses.

Relation with Community

During the year, the Group continued to support a wide spectrum
of community services targeted at providing for the needy in
Hong Kong, the PRC and beyond. The Group had supported the
activities organised by The Better Hong Kong Foundation and
had participated in the Walk for Millions. The Group was recently
presented with the Caring Company 2007-2008 Award by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service for fostering good corporate

citizenship in both public and private sectors.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Financial Review BA¥3 O EE

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group’s turnover by segments BE-ZEENEANBA=1THIEE  KEEK

and their respective results from operations are reported as follows: ERoEEBNEHREEEDNAOT -
Turnover Operating Results
BEXE EEES
(HKS million) 2008 2007 2008 2007
(BEEHET) —EBEN\EFE —EZtF ZBIN\E —ZT=tHF
Continuing operations IFEEEER
Food (Note) R (faE) 1,569 1,148 84 78
Detergent BRERAm 177 134 6 8
Distribution EmDH 344 283 51 49
Others Hith 4 4 (28) (38)
2,094 1,569 113 97
Discontinued operation BARIFAZEER
Packaging BHEER 484 729 6 10
2,578 2,298 119 107
Net interest expenses FRE X (2) (5)
Net gain on disposal of packaging HEBEER
business EFKER 9 —
Taxation (expenses)/credit BE(ZH) A (10) 8
Minority interests DYIRRER 2 —
118 110
Note: BiEE:
The operating result of Food Segment is the sum of (i) operating profit EmoBHNEEEBBANROECE R B
of HK$81 million (2007: HK$75 million) and (ii) share of profit of a jointly 81,000,000 T (= ZEZ 5 : B % 75,000,000 7T) K (i)
controlled entity of HK$3 million (2007: HK$3 million). FE ik 2 (342 %18 B8 49 )% ) 7B 5 3,000,000 T (= F =+

£ : 8% 3,000,000 7T ) A °

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited FE (&%) BRAT
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Financial Review (continveq)

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group’s turnover from the
continuing operations rose by HK$525 million (or 33%) to HK$2,094
million. The increase was primarily attributable to the Food and
Detergent businesses whose turnover grew at a rate of 37% and
32% respectively. Packaging business, which was disposed in
February 2008, contributed HK$484 million to the Group’s total

turnover.

Through continuous investment in developing innovative products
and new channels in eastern and northern cities in Mainland China,
profit before tax from the continuing operations increased by
HK$20 million (or 21%) to HK$112 million. The Group had an one-
off tax refund of HK$20 million in prior year but no such tax refund
in current year. Packaging business contributed HK$6 million to the
Group's total profit for the current year, and its divestment resulted

in a net gain of HK$9 million.

Details of the debt maturity profile and the gearing of the Group

are set out in note 34(b) to the financial statements.

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at the
corporate level. There are stringent controls over the application
of financial instruments which can only be employed to manage
and mitigate the exposure of interest rate risk attributable to bank
borrowings, and the exposure of foreign currency risk arising from

trade and other receivables denominated in foreign currencies.

Having strong liquidity with a current ratio exceeding two as well
as the readily available banking facilities, the management believes
the Group has sufficient resources to fund its daily operating

activities, current and potential investment opportunities.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Financial Review (continveq)

The majority of the Group’s borrowings carries interest at floating
rates and is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
exposure to other exchange rate fluctuation is primarily related to

deposit placement in foreign currencies.

The Group has operations in Mainland China and Hong Kong. In
February 2008, the Group disposed of its packaging business which
had operations in Mainland China and Taiwan. After the divestment,
local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in Renminbi and

Hong Kong dollars, albeit some in United States dollars.

Details of the project commitments are set out in note 37(a) to the

financial statements.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 55, Chairman of the Company since 12 October 2006 and has
been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since appointment
to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Kwek is the President and CEO of Guoco Group Limited, a
Hong Leong Group company listed in the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He qualified as a chartered
accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England

and Wales.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad, the ultimate holding company of the Company.
He is the brother-in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-Executive

Director of the Company.

Leung Wai Fung

Aged 52, Executive Director of LSHK since 11 July 2005. Mr. Leung
has been designated as the Group Managing Director with effect
from 1 September 2006.

Mr. Leung joined LSHK in 1997 and had assumed the positions
of Group Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of
Distribution Segment. He was appointed as Executive Director of
the Board in June 2002. In March 2004, Mr. Leung resigned from
LSHK and assumed a senior management position with a Hong

Leong Group company.

Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
from Simon Fraser University and an Executive Master’'s Degree
in Business Administration (EMBA) from Fudan University School
of Management. He has over 20 years experience in the areas of
business management, strategic planning and development as well

as acquisitions and mergers.

He had worked in Hong Kong and overseas with multinationals,
including The East Asiatic (EAC), British Petroleum (BP), Inchcape
Pacific, Hiram Walker-Allied Vintners in the U.S.A. and Canada, and
Hostess Frito-Lay (snack food division of Pepsi-Cola) in Canada.
Before joining the LSHK Group in 1997, Mr. Leung was the General

Manager of Guoco Investments (China) Limited.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Whang Sun Tze

Aged 64, Non-Executive Director of LSHK since appointment to the
Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering. He is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Lo Kwong Chi, Clement

Aged 63, Independent Non-Executive Director of LSHK since 1993
and Non-Executive Director of LSHK since appointment to the
Board in 1975.

Mr. Lo is a solicitor by profession and was admitted to practice both

in Hong Kong and England in 1970.

Tan Lim Heng

Aged 60, Non-Executive Director of LSHK since appointment to the
Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan is an Executive Director of Guoco Group Limited and is
the Managing Director of Dao Heng Securities Limited and Dao
Heng Commodities Limited. Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Science
first class honours degree in engineering from University of
Surrey and a Master of Science degree in management from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He had previously worked
in Geneva in 1974 with the United Nations Conference on Trade and
Development. He had also served in the Singapore Civil Service as
a Colombo Plan Scholar 1975-1978 before coming to work in Hong
Kong with a financial services company and a major U.S. bank. Mr.
Tan has extensive experience in property investment, financial and

investment management services.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Tsang Cho Tai

Aged 58, Non-Executive Director of LSHK since appointment to the
Board in 1997.

Mr. Tsang was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of

LSHK in 1999 and re-designated as Non-Executive Director in 2004.

Mr. Tsang joined Guoco Group Limited in 1989 and is the chief
financial officer of the Guoco Group. Prior to that he was an
associate of an international firm of accountants. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as
an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in

England and Wales.

Ding Wai Chuen

Aged 48, Independent Non-Executive Director of LSHK since
appointment to the Board in 2004. Mr. Ding is a Partner of Grant
Thornton, Certified Public Accountants. He is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Ding Wai Chuen (continued)

Mr. Ding had worked for international firms of accountants in
England and in Hong Kong for over 11 years before joining the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
in 1994 as the Head of the Professional Compliance Division. His
main responsibilities at the HKICPA were monitoring and enforcing
compliance with the HKICPA’s professional standards. In 2007,
Mr. Ding was appointed by the Hong Kong SAR Government as a
member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial
Reporting Council. Since 2002, Mr. Ding has been appointed by
the PRC Ministry of Finance as a member of the Advisory Group of
Foreign Experts for the development of PRC's Independent Auditing
Standards. Since the beginning of 2007, he has been involved, as
an advisor, in the joint projects between HKICPA and PRC Ministry
of Finance for the comparison of Hong Kong and PRC accounting
and auditing standards. Mr. Ding was appointed by the Hong Kong
SAR Government of the PRC as a member of the Commission on
Strategic Development in November 2005 and as a member of the
Central Policy Unit Panel on the Pan-Pearl River Delta in January
2006. Mr. Ding has recently been elected as a council member of
the HKICPA.

Irie Yasuaki

Aged 47, Independent Non-Executive Director of LSHK since
appointment to the Board in May 2007.

Mr. Irie holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree from Hitotsubashi

University and has over 20 years experience in the food and retail

industry in the Asia Pacific region.

lkeda Hiromi
Aged 51, Alternate Director to Mr. Irie Yasuaki.

Mr. Ikeda holds a Bachelor Degree in Agriculture. He is currently in

charge of Internal Auditing Department of Mitsui & Co., Ltd.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

TES&®

TRER-NANOFHEETBSHMLSEE
BEERCEBERN  BERREREBZEBRME
SMEBAERE T —F2X c AHAEEE
SO EXEERAELENE  TER
EREERVTLAGEXENSTH EFT R
AREBEINITHRERFAZEAVBERDE
TeMBEERBRNZEENKE - B-TF =
Fie TEEBTEARANBEMBBERES
BYETENIFERZHAARE - B-FF
TtHE > TRETUBANERESNSHEE
BEFMAERFEARANEYBBLR
REZER EEHHE RN NE BT BER
EREFENERETHR - TEED BN
ZERFT-ARZZEZERNF-AEPEAR
HAREBERTHRERFNZEARKBERE
EERERTABKEAZHR=ZAPMEEE - B
—ERE)\FHK RERRTBETMASHE
Eo

SIK 1)

BEN++tam BE-ZE2LFAABHELSR
AIBMIFHITES -

NIZERFE-RBARBHERE L2240 IR
DABRMREBETERER - THFKR -

MHEEE

BFERE+t—B NIFPAREZRTES -

MHEERERXZETEN - RRA=ZHY
EMRASHARELNEE -

BIE(&EE) BRLA




LAM
@

(0] CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT f ¥ &8 &EE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board has adopted the key provisions of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CGP Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, which provides guidelines to reinforce our
corporate governance principles. Continuous efforts are made
to review and enhance the Group’s internal control policy and
procedures in light of local and international developments to
instill best practices. The Company had complied throughout the
year ended 30 June 2008 with all the provisions of the CGP Code,
except that the non-executive directors were not appointed for a
specific term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company. As such, the
Company considers that such provisions are sufficient to meet the

underlying objectives of the relevant provisions of the CGP Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct

regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model

Code for the year.

Board of Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 39.

During the year, four board meetings were held. Mr. KWEK Leng Hai,
Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung, Dr. WHANG Sun Tze, Mr. TAN Lim Heng, Mr.
TSANG Cho Tai and Mr. DING Wai Chuen attended all four meetings.
Mr. IRIE Yasuaki attended three meetings and Mr. LO Kwong Chi,
Clement attended only two meetings due to injury suffered in an

accident.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad strategies,
monitors and controls operating and financial performance and
sets appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group's
strategic objectives. Decisions involving financial statements,
dividend policy, material contracts and major investments and
divestments are reviewed and subject to approval by the Board.
Other main roles of the Board are to ensure that adequate internal
control systems and management information systems are in place,
including being in compliance with every aspect of the provisions
of applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to
create value for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company
has adequate management to achieve the Company’s strategic

objectives.

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors for the year pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the date of this
report, the Company still considers the independent non-executive

directors independent.

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Directors’ Profile” on pages 26 to 29 of this annual

report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are undertaken
independently by Mr. KWEK Leng Hai and Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung

respectively.

Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is primarily responsible for ensuring the
effective functioning of the Board, which focuses on the Group's
broad strategic direction and macro oversight of the management.
Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung is responsible for the management of the
Company in accordance with the strategies approved by the Board

of Directors.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term
but their terms of office are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings in accordance with the

Company’s articles of association.

Remuneration of Directors

The Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”) was established on
1 July 2005 with written terms of reference made pursuant to the
relevant provisions of the CGP Code. The terms of reference of the
BRC adopted by the Board are available on the Company’s website

(www.lamsoon.com).

The BRC comprises Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
Company and Chairman of the BRC), LO Kwong Chi, Clement and
DING Wai Chuen. The latter two are independent non-executive

directors of the Company.

The principal role of the BRC is to make recommendations to
the Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
directors and senior management, and to determine the specific
remuneration packages of the executive director and all senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The BRC would also consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere

in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the year, two BRC meetings were held, which were attended
by all members. At these meetings, the remuneration packages of
the executive director and senior management for the year were

reviewed.
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Nomination of Directors

The Board is responsible for the selection and recommendation
of candidates for directorship of the Company. Reference would
be made to the skills, experience, professional integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidate, the Company’s needs
and other applicable statutory requirements. The Board would also

review the size, structure and composition of the Board.

During the year, at one of the meetings of the board of directors,

nomination of director to the Board was reviewed and discussed.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the external auditors of the Group
charged approximately HK$1,357,000 for annual audit service and

there was no non-audit service rendered by the external auditors.

Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee (“BAC") was established in December
1998 with written terms of reference. On 1 July 2005, the terms
of reference were revised to align with the provisions under the
CGP Code. The terms of reference of the BAC are available on the

Company’s website (www.lamsoon.com).

The BAC comprises Messrs. LO Kwong Chi, Clement (Chairman of
the BAC), TSANG Cho Tai and DING Wai Chuen. Messrs. LO Kwong
Chi, Clement and DING Wai Chuen are independent non-executive

directors of the Company.

The BAC oversees the financial process and the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control. The
BAC meets with the Company’s external auditors and the internal
auditors for their evaluations of the internal control system. It
also reviews interests in contracts and connected transactions.
The BAC reviews the financial statements of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and the auditors’

report thereon and submits its views to the Board.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

EFRE

EXSEERERERESREA  ABER
EBNEREANGED &8 BXAERFAFE
FHNER  ARAANFTERELMWAEBENEE
MER ESTTERITESTNAEY - REB
FAR °

RAFER Hh-—EESS22PRIR
WEBEMNESREE -

2R BT B &

BE-ZT)/\FRAZTHLFE £5H
N AT RU BRI RENRBYE
1,357,000 7T » i 7h &R 4% B4 A 36 R 42 1 I X BUBR
& o

EESE

ExgERZEE((EE2EREEE DR
—hANF+ZAKY  YEFFTHEERBE
gE ZECEEAREHECR-_TERFL
A—BEET  MEGEERTFAMRI—H -
ESEENZEENHREHEECHREARR

U5 (www.lamsoon.com) ©

EZEENZECHERS AL (EEEERE
BEEIF)  BHEREERTEREEEAR &
EERERTERAERADBNBEILIFANT
B

EEZEENEZERERYBEFUARARAN
AMEERGTEMRERME - ESEEKE
EEERIERBEORABKBRTREY
AMEZERGNTE ESEERZEETE
BERRBEXG 2NHBR EESERE
EEENARANUBRRRAEENZRS Y
BHE  UARMENZBAMREE  LHES

BRRXHEER -

BIE(&EE) BRLA




LAM
@

L1 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ E QR EE

Board Audit Committee (continued)

During the year, three BAC meetings were held. Messrs. LO Kwong
Chi, Clement, TSANG Cho Tai and DING Wai Chuen attended all
three meetings. The following is a summary of the work performed

by the BAC during the year:

— reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of internal control and enterprise risk management;

— reviewed the consolidated financial statements and results
of the Group;

— reviewed the external auditors’ report thereon;

— reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting
policies;

— reviewed at various times the potential impact of the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong on
the Company’s accounts; and

— approved the external audit fee.

A statement by the external auditors on their reporting

responsibilities is set out on pages 54 to 55 of the annual report.

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their

responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.

Internal Control

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records and the truth and fairness of the
financial statements, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its business

activities.
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Internal Control (continued)

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
internal controls, has developed a risk management framework for

the Group to assist in:

— identifying the significant risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

— developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

— monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of such

measures.

The Board has entrusted the BAC with the responsibility to oversee
the implementation of the risk management framework of the
Group. In discharging this responsibility, the BAC, assisted by the

Group Internal Audit Department:

— periodically evaluates identified risks for their continuing
relevance in the operating environment and inclusion in the
risk management framework;

— assesses adequacy of action plans and control systems
developed to manage these risks; and

— monitors the performance of management in executing the

action plans and operating the control systems.

These on-going processes have been in place for the year under

review, and reviewed periodically by the BAC.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives but to provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement of
management and financial information or against financial losses

and fraud.
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Internal Control (continued)

In the associated companies and jointly controlled companies,
the Board nominates representatives to sit as directors and take a
proactive stance in assessing the performance of the entity with
the goal of safeguarding the investment of the Group. Where
practical, the Group may request functional, financial and operating
information as well as assurance that such information have been
prepared in accordance with reporting standards and have been

derived from control environments acceptable to the Group.

The Board, through the BAC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s internal control system and considers that it is
adequate and effective. The Board is satisfied that the Group has
fully complied with the provisions on internal controls as set out in
the CGP Code.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 30 June 2008.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal

activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 178 to 183.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out on pages 178 to
183.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2008 and the Group'’s cash
flows and statement of changes in equity for the year ended are set

out in the financial statements on pages 56 to 183.

Dividends

The Directors will recommend to the shareholders for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting a final dividend of
HK$0.09 per share. This, together with the interim dividend of
HK$0.06 per share paid on Thursday, 10 April 2008, will amount
to a total dividend of HK$0.15 per share for the year (HK$0.14 per
share for the year ended 30 June 2007). Subject to shareholders’
approval, the final dividend will be payable on Thursday, 20
November 2008 to the shareholders whose names appear on the

register of members on Wednesday, 19 November 2008.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 13 November 2008 to Wednesday, 19 November 2008,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer Office —
Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited at Unit 3401-2, 34th
Floor, AIA Tower, 183 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong not
later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 12 November 2008.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations of HK$645,309 were made by the Group
during the year (2007: Nil).

Share Capital

Movements in share capital during the year are set out in Note 34

to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in Note 36 to the

financial statements.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 18 to

the financial statements.
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Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*

LEUNG Wai Fung, Group Managing Director**
WHANG Sun Tze*

LO Kwong Chi, Clement”

TAN Lim Heng*

TSANG Cho Tai*

DING Wai Chuen”*

IRIE Yasuaki”

IKEDA Hiromi

— alternate director to IRIE Yasuaki

*% Executive director
* Non-executive director
Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 78 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs. LEUNG Wai Fung, LO Kwong Chi, Clement and
DING Wai Chuen shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company received confirmation of independence in respect
of the year from each of the independent non-executive directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the date
of this report, the Company still considers the independent non-

executive directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

Connected Transactions

A service agreement (the “Original GIMC Services Agreement”)
and a supplemental service agreement (the “Supplemental GIMC
Services Agreement”) were entered into between the Company
and GIMC Limited (“GIMC") on 27 June 2003 and 17 January 2006
respectively. GIMC is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, which is deemed to be interested
in 77.51% of share capital in the Company by virtue of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”). A summary of the terms
of the Original GIMC Services Agreement and as amended and
supplemented by the Supplemental GIMC Services Agreement

(together, the “GIMC Services Agreement”) is as follows:

(a) GIMC would provide the Company, its subsidiaries and
associated companies with services including the overview
of the Group’s strategies and planning, oversight of
investment and financial management disciplines, treasury
and risk management and development, development of
quality and productivity programmes, guidance in respect
of operating practices and procedures, and overview of
planning and development of management information

systems;

(b) the Company would pay to GIMC services fees, comprising
a monthly charge of HK$50,000 (or such other amount as
may be agreed from time to time between GIMC and the
Company) and an annual fee equal to 3 per cent. of the
annual consolidated profits before tax of the Company for
each of the three financial years ended 30 June 2006, 30
June 2007 and 30 June 2008; and
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Connected Transactions (continued)
(continued)

(c) the GIMC Services Agreement is for a term of three years
commenced on 1 July 2005 and may be renewed thereafter
for a consecutive term of three years by the Company
serving written notice to GIMC at least three months prior
to the expiration of the current terms, subject to GIMC's

agreement to such renewal.

In the event that the aggregate service fees payable under the
GIMC Services Agreement by the Company together with the
total of any fees paid or payable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries to HLCM or any of its subsidiaries for the provision of
similar services, if any, exceeded the annual cap of HK$10,000,000
during any of the three financial years ended 30 June 2006, 30 June
2007 and 30 June 2008, the Company would be required to re-
comply with the Listing Rules as appropriate.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company reviewed
the transactions under the GIMC Services Agreement (the “GIMC

Transactions”) during the year and confirmed that:
(1) the GIMC Transactions were entered into:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the

Company;

— on terms no less favourable to the Company than the

terms available from independent third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole;

(2) the aggregate of the service fees paid and payable by the
Company under the GIMC Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$4.4 million which did not
exceed the annual cap of HK$10 million as disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 17 January 2006.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

The Company obtained shareholders’ approval on 18 April 2006
to modify the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide for the satisfaction of the exercise of
options through issue of new shares of the Company or transfer
of existing issued shares of the Company (“Existing Shares”) or a
combination of both. A trust for the Share Option Scheme (the
“Trust”) was established in July 2006 pursuant to a trust deed (the
“Trust Deed”) between the Company and a trustee of the Trust (the
“Trustee”) to acquire Existing Shares for the purpose of the Share
Option Scheme. The Company or its subsidiaries will make loans
to the Trust from time to time to enable the Trust to acquire the

Existing Shares for the purpose of the Trust.

The grant of options to the directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries (who are connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules) pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the grant
of loans to the Trust, the beneficiaries of which include directors
and chief executive of the Group, from time to time constitute
continuing connected and possible discloseable transactions for

the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had

reviewed and confirmed that:

(1) no option was granted under the Share Option Scheme for

the year; and
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Connected Transactions (continued)
(continued)

(2) during the year, the maximum subsisting amount of the
finances provided by Lam Soon for the purchase of Existing
Shares are approximately HK$6,829,000 which did not
exceed the cap amount of HK$90 million as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 March 2006. The

provisions of such finances were made:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the

Company;
— on normal commercial terms; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.

Management Contracts

Except the GIMC Services Agreement disclosed in the section
of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or subsisted

during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group'’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EENKG - HER D RE
Underlying Shares and Debentures HFZ

As at 30 June 2008, the directors of the Company have the RIBENERA=ZTH  FEERARFAR
HEMBEAD(EEREERBEHEMEXY
MVEEARBEERDEEANEIKEE
MR EREMEFRZRG  BEERAST
KRR  HERORESZEERBE LT
BAZ AT ESETESERS NELESTE
((EEFa ) ENEAAAREBHARS M
BRAT (TBRF ) 2 BT :

following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:

Approximate
percentage of

total issued
share capital
Number of of the
shares/ Company
underlying EEAT
Nature of shares held ST
Name of director interest BAERKR® S Notes Total BAEEZ
EEa HELSE HERBEE A st o= h R 4
KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
LI is] A
LEUNG Wai Fung Personal 2,400,000 (a) 2,400,000 0.99%
R A
WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,123,743
5L A
Corporate 19,326 (b)
NS
Persons acting in 150,790,035 (c)&(d) 177,933,104 73.12%
concert
—HITEBATL
LO Kwong Chi, Clement Personal 403,754 403,754 0.17%
BEXL A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 274,000 274,000 0.11%
R R £ & A
DING Wai Chuen Personal 10,000 10,000 0.00%
TEE EA
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Rzt - HBER i B 1E
RS )

)

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

=X
FZ

Approximate
percentage
of total
issued share

capital of
Number of associated
shares/ corporation
Name of underlying 1B E AT
associated Name of Nature of shares held 2ETRE
corporation director interest BAEBKR® S Notes Total Hok
BEATZME EEfs EatE HEERONEE A @t #\dhEsk
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai ~ Personal 420,500 420,500 2.62%
(Malaysia) Berhad LB A
Guoco Group Limited  KWEK Leng Hai  Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
BUESRBEAR AT Iy & A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%
FoR ok B A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 1,000 1,000 0.00%
EEES fBA
Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai  Personal 26,468,186 26,468,186 2.98%
BERERRART HLE BA
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
sEEE i3
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,333,333 1,333,333 0.15%
ok ok B fEA
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 268,000 268,000 0.03%
ZEEES fEA
Hong Leong Bank KWEK Leng Hai  Personal 3,955,700 3,955,700 0.26%
Berhad LT A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
ErE ENA
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Rzt « HBER 1 B 1B
RS )

¢

Directors’ Interests in Shares, =
Underlying Shares and Debentures &

(continued)

£
2z

(continued) (#&)
Approximate
percentage
of total
issued share
capital of
Number of associated
shares/ corporation
Name of underlying 1B E AT
associated Name of Nature of shares held 2EThRE
corporation director interest BERYB . Notes Total Bz
BEATZME EEfE #HnME HEERGEE  AE @xt  #\dEsk
Hong Leong Financial KWEK Leng Hai  Personal 2,316,800 2,316,800 0.22%
Group Berhad BLE A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
k) ENA
TAN Lim Heng Personal 245,700 245,700 0.02%
FoR ok B EA
Hong Leong Industries KWEK Leng Hai  Personal 189,812 189,812 0.07%
Berhad 2w &8A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
-k a1 EVi3
Guocoland (Malaysia) KWEK Leng Hai  Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
Berhad ISt &8A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
Rk 2 BA
Hume Industries WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
(Malaysia) Berhad =T Y3
HLG Capital Berhad KWEK Leng Hai  Personal 500,000 500,000 0.41%
HLE &A
Guocoleisure Limited  TAN Lim Heng Personal 100,000 100,000 0.01%
IRk £ & A

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(&EB)BRAR
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

Notes:

(a) The interests of Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung represent the interests
in 200,000 ordinary shares of the Company and 2,200,000
underlying shares in respect of the share options granted
by the Company exercisable within 30 months following
the notification of entitlement to confirm the vesting and
the number of options exercisable.

(b) The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests
of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and 869
ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR Investment
Company, Limited (“SGR”) and T.C. Whang & Company
(Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.”) respectively. Dr. WHANG Sun
Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in SGR and T.C. & Co.
respectively.

(c) The total interests disclosed herein represent the interests
in 177,914,647 ordinary shares of the Company which the
respective parties held by virtue of Section 317 of the
SFO in relation to the interests in shares pursuant to the
shareholders’ agreement and the supplemental agreement
both dated 27 May 1997 entered into by Guoinvest
International Limited (“Guoinvest”) and, inter alia, Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze (alias: WHANG Siong Tiat), the late Mr.
WHANG Tar Choung, Madam TEO Joo Yee, T.C. & Co. and
Raven Investment Company, Limited (“Raven”) and the
Novation Agreement dated 5 September 2003 entered into
by Guoinvest, GuoLine International Limited (“GuoLine”, a
sister subsidiary of Guoinvest), Dr. WHANG Sun Tze (alias:
WHANG Siong Tiat), the late Mr. WHANG Tar Choung,
Madam TEO Joo Yee, T.C. & Co. and Raven.

(d) The interests of persons acting in concert disclosed
represent the deemed interests of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in
150,790,035 ordinary shares in the Company referred to in
Note (c) above.

All the interests disclosed in sections (A) and (B) above represent
long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company or its
associated corporations save as otherwise specified in the notes

above.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEEiREE

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

Save as disclosed herein, none of the director of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Options

As at 1 July 2007, there were 5,400,000 outstanding options
pursuant to the current share option scheme approved by the
shareholders on 23 May 2003 and subsequently amended and
approved by the shareholders on 18 April 2006 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) of the Company. During the year, 1,700,000 options
granted to employees were lapsed. Details of the share options as

at 30 June 2008 are as follows:

Rzt « HBER 1 B 1B
iR

¢

=X
o

BRANFIIEEN  BEEAARQFAE
ERADAREEMBEATNERAR
BESZRPBERPEIDFRBEMRZ
BELaMAmEzRG  BERATZ
KRR - HERDRESZRBERE
SFRIAMEAR BRI o

ARt

R-ZEZLFLtA—HB RER=-_ZZ=FH
A-Z+=RERRAAEARER-ZTEAEFED
BT+ N NBERRAENET BB BRES
B((BERESS DERITEZEREZRE R
5,400,000 - ARFEER » £ F{EE 1,700,000 8
RELE KRR - R=ZZENFARA=1TH B
REZFHBNT ¢

Price on
date of grant
per share Exercise
ARSI HE price
Date of grant Grantees No. of options b =Rt per share
RHBH EREA FERERE BRER BRITRE
HKS HKS
B B
25 July 2006 LEUNG Wai Fung (director) 2,200,000 4.50 4.50 Note
—ZERELA-TEA RRE(EF) Mzt
Other employees of the Group 1,500,000 4.50 4.50 Note
SEHMES Mzt

Note: Subject to certain financial and performance targets being met by
the grantees during the performance period for the financial years
2005/2006 to 2007/2008, the grantees may, at any time as may
be prescribed by the BRC at its discretion, be notified (the “Date
of Notification”) of the vesting of the options and the number of
shares comprised in vested options. Thereafter, the grantees shall
have an exercise period of up to 30 months following the Date of
Notification to exercise the vested options in accordance with the
terms of their grant.
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Share Options (continued)

During the year, no options were granted to a director and other

employees of the Group pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed herein, no other options were vested, exercised,
lapsed nor cancelled during the year. Accordingly, the number of
outstanding options was 3,700,000 as at 30 June 2008.

Certain subsidiaries of HLCM, the Company’s ultimate holding
company have made arrangements under which eligible directors
of the Company may acquire shares in the respective companies
concerned. No person who at any time during the year were
directors of the Company held shares acquired in pursuance of the

arrangements.

Apart from the foregoing, there was no arrangement to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company or fellow
subsidiaries was a party to enable the directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company

or any other body corporate.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE=EREE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other FERREEMBEANZFI

=
Persons’ Interests in Shares fES

As at 30 June 2008, the following persons (other than directors of RZBENFEARAB=1H ' REEZERBEK
the Company) have interests or short positions in the shares and BlEE 3B IEBEMHR 2B ZMERE > T3
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by AL (ERRATESHRIMNBERDEBBERAEAF
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: ZRBRDBEER G 2R

Approximate

percentage
Number of of interest
shares held Notes S22
RREZRHEE Bt =174
The estate of the late WHANG Tar Choung 177,914,647 (A)+(B) 73.11%
EMEREEE
Raven Investment Company, Limited (“Raven”) 177,914,647 (A)+(C) 73.11%
MEREBRAT (TFE])
T.C. Whang & Company (Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.”) 177,914,647 (A)+(D) 73.11%
TEO Joo Yee 177,914,647 (A)+(E) 73.11%
RINE
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”") 188,632,647 (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
QUEK Leng Chan 188,632,647 (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
LIleg e
HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH") 188,632,647 (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH") 188,632,647 (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 188,632,647 (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%
KWEK Leng Kee 188,632,647 (A)+(F)+(G) 77.51%

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(&EB)BRAR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE &L=

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares (continued)

Notes:

(A)

(@

The total interests disclosed herein represent the interests in
177,914,647 ordinary shares of the Company which the respective
parties held by virtue of Section 317 of the SFO in relation to the
interests in shares pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement and the
supplemental agreement both dated 27 May 1997 entered into by
Guoinvest and, inter alia, Dr. WHANG Sun Tze (alias: WHANG Siong
Tiat), the late Mr. WHANG Tar Choung, Madam TEO Joo Yee, T.C. &
Co. and Raven and the Novation Agreement dated 5 September
2003 entered into by Guoinvest, GuoLine, Dr. WHANG Sun Tze (alias:
WHANG Siong Tiat), the late Mr. WHANG Tar Choung, Madam TEO
Joo Yee, T.C. & Co. and Raven.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) own interest of the late Mr.
WHANG Tar Choung in 5,337,637 ordinary shares in the Company;
and (ii) the deemed interest in 172,577,010 ordinary shares in the
Company held by other parties referred to in Note (A) above.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) own interest of Raven in
1,221,205 ordinary shares in the Company; and (ii) the deemed
interest in 176,693,442 ordinary shares in the Company held by
other parties referred to in Note (A) above.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) own interest of T.C. & Co. in 869
ordinary shares in the Company; and (ii) the deemed interest in
177,913,778 ordinary shares in the Company held by other parties
referred to in Note (A) above.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) own interest of Madam TEO
Joo Yee in 4,222,534 ordinary shares in the Company; and (ii) the
deemed interest in 173,692,113 ordinary shares in the Company
held by other parties referred to in Note (A) above.

The interests disclosed comprise (i) the corporate interests
in 140,008,659 ordinary shares in the Company held through
Guoline; (ii) the deemed interest in 37,905,988 ordinary shares in
the Company held by other parties referred to in Note (A) above;
(iii) own interest of Richly Choice Development Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1,393,000 ordinary shares
in the Company; and (iv) own interest of Oceanease Limited in
9,325,000 underlying shares of other unlisted derivatives of the
Company.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEEiREE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(G) Both Guoinvest and GuolLine are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Guoline Capital Assets Limited (“GCA”) which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of HLCM. Oceanease Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited which in turn is 66.81% owned
by Guoline Overseas Limited (“GOL"). GOL is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of GCA. By virtue of Section 316(2) of the SFO, HLCM was
49.11% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan (2.43%) and HLH (46.68%)
which was in turn wholly-owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan. HLCM
is held as to 34.49% by HLIH. Mr. KWEK Leng Kee holds 41.92%
interest in Davos which in turn holds 33.59% interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long

positions in the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors of
the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Shares

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The sales amount attributable to the Group’s 5 largest customers
combined accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover

for the year.

The purchases amount attributable to the Group’s 5 largest
suppliers combined accounted for less than 30% of the Group's

total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the directors or their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had

any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within

the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs. PKF,
Certified Public Accountants, is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 September 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT &I EEfsREE

PKF

Accountants &
business advisers

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LAM SOON (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam Soon
(Hong Kong) Limited set out on pages 56 to 183, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 30 June 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on these consolidated financial statements and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

RERBR(EB)STEIEHAT

&5
iR
BB TS

BEEEBTLT/E

BIAZBMRERHIE(FEE)ARATEE
B3R
(REBEMAE L ZBRLE])

R BEN (AT BRI M) B F PR 56
Z1BEFIE(FB)ERQBAEQRINGS
BBHmE LESMBRREER-ZZNF
AAZtTENGREEAERRAFREESR
REBEZHLELFENGRERR  KEER
BHRNGERERER  URFTESTHHR
BER E M TR -

=R B HRRARIEN
Bff

EEAAEMATERHBLRBANTBH
BREEARTBADVRAFURABAAT
BIIRES B RE - BEERERT B
REHRENRERN AT B BEET
BRI B - AR A B R T A5 A
MR M H A E A S I | RIBAIE
REENEHEE REFATFHAENE
st o

AR IE

RANSEEERBEMCERTFERYZS
MBRERREB ISR - WREEFBQIRD
F1MIRERNZBRRBRE BRIt 2 N
SHUAMEREMAR - RMTEREREZAR
EEAEBA LR ESREETEE -

HMIE (&R BRAA



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT &L EEfsREE

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30 June 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PKF

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 11 September 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT &5

LA ES

For the year ended 30 June 2008

BLZ 2008 F 6 A 30 HILEE
2008 2007
—EBENE —EEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
et BT BT T
Continuing operations HEEEER
Turnover B 7 2,094,370 1,569,335
Cost of sales THERA (1,767,532) (1,272,946)
Gross profit EF 326,838 296,389
Other income HAn A 8 55,734 28,007
Selling and distribution expenses  $HERDHEEA (181,359) (146,752)
Administrative expenses THER (91,118) (79,356)
Other operating expenses Hih&& B (1,042) (3,913)
Operating profit KRR 109,053 94,375
Net interest income/(expenses) BRBUWA(ZH) 9 84 (4,639)
Share of profit of a jointly FE{h HEHEHIE 52
controlled entity KA 23 3,347 2,908
Profit before taxation RRBE AR A 10 112,484 92,644
Taxation (expenses)/credit BE(XE) WA 12(b) (11,220) 8,998
Profit for the year from continuing ~ ANFEFEEE £
operations EERER 101,264 101,642
Discontinued operation BRI EEER 14
Profit for the year from a REECRIELEER
discontinued operation EERER 5,685 8,456
Net gain on disposal of a HEDKRIEREEK
discontinued operation FA 8,803 —
Total profit from a discontinued DRI ER
_operaton EE®®&¥ . 14488 8,456
Profit for the year REE G F 115,752 110,098

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(E%8)BRAF



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT &Z &R

For the year ended 30 June 2008

FE 2008 6H30HIFE
2008 2007
—EBE0\E —EELHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
et BETIT BT
Attributable to: FEARER
Shareholders of the Company YNNI 15 118,099 109,882
Minority interests DERRER (2,347) 216
Profit for the year REEHF 115,752 110,098
Appropriations: Ol 16
Final dividend paid in respect of M-BEN S ZEZLF
2006/07 EEefRERE 19,357 17,001
Interim dividend paid in respect M-BEL ZZBENE
of 2007/08 EETHHRE 14,517 14,517
33,874 31,518
Earnings per share (HK$) BRER(ET) 17
Basic and diluted BEARKREE 0.49 0.45
For profit from continuing
operations (HK$) HFERE RN ET)
Basic and diluted BEARREE 0.42 0.42
For profit from a discontinued
operation (HK$) R IEREEK R BT
Basic and diluted BEARREE 0.07 0.03
Proposed final dividend RRERARE 16 21,902 19,468

The notes on pages 66 to 177 form part of these financial FIREENTTHZEEMT ARG KRR
statements. — B ©
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET G EEBER

At 30 June 2008
200846 H30H
2008 2007
—EBEN\E —EELE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Azt BETFIT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Fixed assets BE&EE 18(a) 496,494 693,943
Leasehold land HE+H 19 48,402 52,020
Intangible assets BEE 20 2,175 2,175
Interests in associates BE N RER 22 24,581 24,581
Interest in a jointly controlled H[EEH
entity AR 23 63,268 59,921
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ FA{EHENIHEEE 24 757 741
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 13(a) 8,935 13,321
644,612 846,702
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories FE 25 273,625 301,214
Debtors, deposits and BWER - Zek
prepayments AR 26 236,769 258,471
Bills receivable BWEE - 1,376
Amount due from a jointly FE W £ B3
controlled entity {Ege 1= 23 50,575 7,867
Financial assets at fair value LIEBZEDAABEYER
through profit or loss N BEEE 27 - 2,922
Deposits with financial BB 17 X
institutions — pledged — BIEA = 51
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBEEEH 28 532,081 293,083
1,093,050 864,984
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Bank loans IRITER 29 212,000 142,104
Creditors, deposits received AR BlWiRER
and accruals EFEA 30 217,148 321,249
Bills payable BAREE = 5,427
Tax payable LIRETEN 7,029 6,430
Other current liabilities HitREEE 31 28,132 28,087
464,309 503,297
NET CURRENT ASSETS FRHBEE 628,741 361,687
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES BEERRDAR 1,273,353 1,208,389

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(&E8)BRAT



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 88 EBER

At 30 June 2008
200846 530H
2008 2007
—EBEN\E —EELEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
iEid BETFIT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Employee benefit obligations EBEERFERE 32(a)(i) - 1,210
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEEE 13(a) 1,044 9,598
Other non-current liabilities HuERBER 33 509 354
1,553 11,162
NET ASSETS FEE 1,271,800 1,197,227
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R G#HE
Share capital [ 34(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves & 36(a) 1,011,558 868,356
Equity attributable to shareholders AR FIRER
of the Company FEfLRER 1,254,912 1,111,710
Minority interests DERRER 16,888 85,517
TOTAL EQUITY LS 1,271,800 1,197,227

FIRSE 66 E 177 B2 A ENERRM B HE
—#43 -

The notes on pages 66 to 177 form part of these financial

statements.

ROAESEN-Z2Z/\FLAT-—BHRHERER

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

11 September 2008. RETIEE -
LEUNG Wai Fung  2{&lg WHANG Sun Tze EEH
DIRECTOR EE DIRECTOR EE

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

BIE(&EE) BRLA



BALANCE SHEET BEBESR:

At 30 June 2008
R2008 46 530H
2008 2007
—ET)\E —EBTLE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
HtaE BEFIT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERHEE
Fixed assets BEEE 18(b) 1,054 1,108
Investment in subsidiaries MEBARRE 21 1,253,796 1,253,796
Amounts due from subsidiaries PR B A TR IE 21 1,171,594 1,422,625
Available-for-sale financial assets HHENEEE 24 250 234
2,426,694 2,677,763
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Debtors, deposits and BRER - ZERk
prepayments FERR 26 872 510
Cash and cash equivalents BeERBEEEH 28 354,935 41,9563
355,807 42,463
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBERE
Bank loans RITER 29 30,000 10,000
Creditors, deposits received and BAER - 2WiRER
accruals EFEA 30 9,724 6,035
Other current liabilities HREa s 31 54 54
39,778 16,089
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREEE 316,029 26,374
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES HEERRHER 2,742,723 2,704,137
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERHER
Amounts due to subsidiaries FES I B 2 BRI 21 1,562,024 1,468,457
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEEE 13(b) o 124
Other non-current liabilities HERBER 33 45 99
1,562,069 1,468,680
NET ASSETS FEE 1,180,654 1,235,457
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEREEE
Share capital 1% 34(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves & 36(b) 937,300 992,103
TOTAL EQUITY LS4 1,180,654 1,235,457
The notes on pages 66 to 177 form part of these financial FIREECE17T7TEZEEMT AR BRER 2
statements. — 47 o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KHETER -_ZEZ/\FhLAT—BERR
11 September 2008. FETE o
LEUNG Wai Fung  R{&lg WHANG Sun Tze =EE
DIRECTOR EZ DIRECTOR EE

@ Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY L& EFHR

For the year ended 30 June 2008

FE2008%F 6530 HIFE
Equity
attributable to
shareholders of Minority
the Company interests
ARRRER DERE Total
FEfL R g ast
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEF T BT BETFT
—EELFtLA-H
Total equity at 1 July 2007 ZRER AR 1,111,710 85,5617 1,197,227
Change in fair value of available-for-sale ~ AIEHENHEEEDL L EE
financial assets ZEE 16 - 16
Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements of & EIMEBH NI BRE
foreign operations MEEZERZE 44,957 2,044 47,001
Net income recognised directly in equity ~ EREZEEEIZFRA 44,973 2,044 47,017
Disposal of a discontinued operation HEBKILEK 14,698 (68,326) (53,628)
Liquidation of a subsidiary BEE—XMWEBAR (1,052) - (1,052)
Profit/(loss) for the year XEERA/ (BB) 118,099 (2,347) 115,752
Total recognised income/(expenses)
for the year AEERIZARA /(X H) 176,718 (68,629) 108,089
Dividends paid EFRE (33,874) — (33,874)
BRRAEENURS
Equity seftled share-based transaction = RERMXZ 88 - .. %8
—EENFRA=TH
Total equity at 30 June 2008 ZIERBEE 1,254,912 16,888 1,271,800

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(F8)BRATF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY L& SR

For the year ended 30 June 2008

B F 2008 6 A 30 A 1L F[E
Equity
attributable to
shareholders of Minority
the Company interests
ERRRER DERE Total
FEfL R g ast
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEF T BT BETFT
—EERFLA-H
Total equity at 1 July 2006 ZEREH 1,026,054 85,385 1,111,439
Change in fair value of available-for-sale ~ A HENHEEED L EE
financial assets ZEE 127 - 127
Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements of & EIM EBM I BRE
foreign operations MEEZERZE 15,006 (84) 14,922
Net income/(expenses) recognised HRGEERIZFUN
directly in equity (Zit) 15,133 (84) 15,049
Disposal of subsidiaries BEEKBLA (1,581) — (1,581)
Profit for the year REEER 109,882 216 110,098
Total recognised income for the year REEHERZEBA 123,434 132 123,566
Dividends paid ENRE (31,518) — (31,518)
BRRAEENURS
Equity settled share-based transaction AEBRNR S 569 - 569
Purchase of own shares for option
scheme AERETEBERERG (6,829) — (6,829)
Movements in equity arising from capital
fransactions  EARZHMELNERER | 6260 = (6,260)
—EE+EARA=THZ
Total equity at 30 June 2007 e g ok 1,111,710 85,517 1,197,227

The notes on pages 66 to 177 form part of these financial FIREENTTHZEEMT ARG BEREK 2
statements. —IBp o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(&EB)BRAR



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT Z&5IR&RER

For the year ended 30 June 2008

22008 F 6530 HIEFE
2008 2007
—EEN\E “ZTtE
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
g3 BT BEFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES CEEBHRERE
Operating profit TEHRH
From continuing operations BEEEEER 109,053 94,375
From a discontinued operation HERERSEK 6,447 9,565
115,500 103,940
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation and amortisation WEREHE 59,242 66,579
Charge/(write-back) of provision for
doubtful debts RERERTE/(BE) 891 (1,359)
Write-down/(back) of inventories BFERE/(BE) 1,076 (1,873)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries EEM B AW E (2,009) (802)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBREEE RS (8,108) (1,642)
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair ~ &18%IE A A BESIEMNMTE
value through profit or loss EENREEER = 198
Increase/(decrease) in liability for defined EIEB/HEKHEIEE
benefit retirement plans f3E i,/ CRd) 658 (3,368)
(Decrease)/increase in short-term EHEESREA
employee benefit #CR2) /1 m (65) 743
Equity settled share-based BRRAEEN
transactions URBAERZR S 358 569
Exchange adjustments 0B 5 % - (12,692)
Operating profit before working capital EEESUNER
changes MR RF 167,543 150,297
Increase in inventories FERIEM (60,474) (33,567)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from  JEURIt IR 4| EREEE
a jointly controlled entity B (58n),/HD (42,708) 449
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, deposits ~ JEWEER: » HERTBMNR
and prepayments #y (38 m) /D (72,188) 60,742
Decrease in bills receivable W EERHD 830 4,374
Decrease in financial assets at fair value  ZEBHIE DA EBENIRNEE
through profit or loss BERRD 2,922 7
Decrease in pledged deposits with
financial institutions REBRBEERERNRD 51 39
Decrease in creditors, deposits received  FE{{ERF - SRS RETER
and accruals ODER (75,166) (21,951)
Decrease in bills payable EAEENEHD (5,388) (4,454)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (Fif) /FIELHNEE (84,578) 156,006
Tax paid 2AHE
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBREHR (3,207) (39,212)
Overseas tax paid EENIE (10,077) (13,873)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ FROM CEEBNHRE(FR)/
OPERATING ACTIVITIES Fi{8 %8 (97,862) 102,021

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

BIE(&EE) BRLA



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT Z&8IR&RER

For the year ended 30 June 2008

BLZ 2008 F 6 A 30 HILEE
2008 2007
—ERNE —ETtE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g3 BT BEFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES BETHNHRLRE
Interest received EWFE 6,932 4,828
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEKB R T RERE (a) 314,223 -
Repayment received from loan
receivable EHRER - 9,665
Purchase of fixed assets BEETEE (42,438) (16,987)
Payment for leasehold land BE L F AR = (4,106)
Acquisition of additional interest in a WEEKE AR
subsidiary MEBIMER = (2,175)
Purchase of financial assets at fair BELBREAABEYIEN
value through profit or loss BREE - (3,120)
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed HEBRTEE
assets MR IE R 11,189 6,110
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) BREEBHRERB(FRA)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B 289,906 (5,785)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES METHNRLRE
Drawdown/(repayment) of bank loans  $R{TE &,/ CH4) 69,896 (19,997
Purchase of own shares for share ABERETE
option scheme B[l AR 12 = (6,829)
Increase/(decrease) in obligations BEREEE
under finance leases w3,/ Ced) 439 (99)
Interest paid TR (8,370) (10,064)
Dividends paid FHRE (33,874) (31,518)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) REFBNRLRSE (FR)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ] 28,091 (68,507)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS REeRFEHEHEM 220,135 28,629
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR FURERRLFTHELER 293,083 257,764
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES EX2Hnye 18,863 6,690
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR FRRERRLFHEER 532,081 293,083

The notes on pages 66 to 177 form part of these financial HNEE177TE 2R BT ARG EREK 2
statements. — =R o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(&E8)BRAT



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT Z&5IR&RER

For the year ended 30 June 2008

FE2008%F 6530 HIFE
Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement FERERERME
(a) Disposal of principal subsidiaries (a) HEXEMBAT
On 18 February 2008, the Company and Canmake RZEENFZA+NA > AQFH
Business Limited entered into an agreement pursuant Canmake Business Limited 5] M & °
to which the Company agreed to sell the packaging Bt RARRRHEAREZEEE
business of the Group to Canmake Business Limited. The fREETFE o Canmake Business Limited B9
consideration payable by Canmake Business Limited was FE1F X 18 A& 3= 7T 53,500,000 Tt (49 78 #&
US$53.5 million (approximately HK$417 million) which 417,000,0007t) * MZEEER_TE
was fully received on 28 February 2008. NEZAZ+NBE2EKE -
The cash flow and the net assets of principal subsidiaries HEFEMBARZREREREETF
disposed of are provided below: BT :
2008 2007
—ET0\E —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Non-current assets FREBEE 234,758 -
Current assets REVEE 329,527 —
Current liabilities nEAE (94,088) -
Non-current liabilities FERBARE (9,920) —
Minority interests DERERER (68,326) —
Release of reserve {74 g 20 3% 14,698 —
Net assets disposed of HEREE 406,649 —
Provision and transaction costs BERRZEAR 1,875 -
Net gain on disposal HEFF 8,803 —
Cash received [Ealeika 417,327 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
disposed of B HENBESRESEEH (103,104) —
Net cash inflow in respect of the principal HETEHB AT ZREHFE
subsidiaries disposed of FEE 314,223 —
During the financial year ended 30 June 2007, the Group R-ZEBEELtEANA=1TBHLEZHHE
did not dispose any of its operation. B> AEEWREEETMEL -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(FB)ERAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R Mist

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F6H 30 AL FE

1. General Information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company
is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong. During the year, the
company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

1. —RRE&E#E

“Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

MIE(EB)ERAAR—EREBIM
BN BRAT - A ATNEMPEE
REBEEMBMUNEBHAKE KB
IENAREH =T -5  REFE K
RAREMBLAR (GBI AEE ) EE
D=+ 3

@ Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

manufacturing and distribution of a broad range of
food products

manufacturing and distribution of household
cleaning products

trading and distribution of a wide range of
products

Significant Accounting Policies

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

— REKIE-RIRM

— HRERIEREFZAR

— EBEERIE-RIEMm

HEMBRECREST B
rE(EBEFMAE ) A
B EREBYEREER
(EEMBREED ] tEEHE
BEMBERZENEEVBER
HER - FREFEN(ERS
FFEA D RZE  BEBEEAR
S RARE B QAR ZRE
REMME o L EMBRETH
BEBMAXZMERARES
EHRANT EmRALD 28 AR
BRI > TXIHAKE R 2
TREHHREME -

B (F#8)BRAF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATS iR R bisE

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2008 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interest in associates and a jointly
controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

— Financial instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss

(see note 2(k));

— Available-for-sale financial assets (see note
2(m)); and

— Certain fixed assets (see note 2(f)).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

BIE(&EE) BRLA

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R Mist

For the year ended 30 June 2008

EiFE 2008 6 H30 HiLFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:HBE @)
(Continued)

@ Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
pboth current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next
year are discussed in note 4.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyer.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.

B (F#8)BRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R Rt

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method.

Income from management services are recognised
at the time when the services are provided.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and

losses are recognised in income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars (HK$) at the average
exchange rates for the year. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January
2005, are translated into HK$ at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied
at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

BIE(&EE) BRLA

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

2. EETFTER @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R Mist

For the year ended 30 June 2008
BLZ 2008 F 6 A 30 HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:HBE @)

(Continued)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

(Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised
in equity which relates to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal
management reporting, the Group has determined
that business segments be presented as the
primary reporting format and geographical as the
secondary reporting format. Inter-segment transfer
pricing is based on cost plus an appropriate

margin.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are
determined before inter-segment balances and
inter-segment transactions are eliminated as part

of the consolidation.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the year to acquire segment assets
(both tangible and intangible) that are expected to
be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial
and corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings, corporate and financing expenses.

B (F#8)BRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R Rt

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its present working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
a fixed asset has been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the
fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of the fixed asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(q)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction and exchange
differences capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to fixed assets when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed.
No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

2. EETFTER @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R Mist

For the year ended 30 June 2008

EiFE 2008 6 H30 HiLFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:HBE @)
(Continued)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

(Continued)

No depreciation is provided in respect of land held
on freehold. Depreciation on other fixed assets
is calculated to write down their costs to their
estimated residual values on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:

Buildings and leasehold 1%/,% — 33'/:,%
improvements
Plant, equipment, furniture and 5% — 33'/:%

motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

Gains or losses on disposal of a fixed asset is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is

recognised in income statement.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

B (F#8)BRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R Rt

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(Continued)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(q). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to income statement
over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R Mist

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F 6 H 30 AL FE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(iii)

(Continued)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in income statement as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to income statement in the
accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under
an operating lease is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and identified
impairment and is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term.

Borrowing costs are expensed in income

statement in the period in which they are incurred,

except to the extent that are capitalised as being

directly attributable to the acquisition, construction

or production of an asset which necessarily takes

a substantial period of time to get ready for its

intended use or sale.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R R

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in process. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R Mist

For the year ended 30 June 2008

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

B F 2008 6 A 30 A 1L F[E
2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:HBE @)
(Continued)
(Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests
that are not owned by the Company, whether
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meet the definition of a
financial liability. Minority interests are presented
in the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Minority interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated income statement as
an allocation of the total profit or loss for the
year between minority interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest
is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group
has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(q)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥5 R Rz

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which
operates under a contractual arrangement
between the Group and other parties, where the
contractual arrangement establishes that the
Group and one or more of the other parties share
joint control over the economic activity of the
entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost
and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the associate’s
or the jointly controlled entity’s net assets. The
consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the associates and jointly controlled
entities for the year, including any impairment loss
on goodwill relating to the investment in associates
and jointly controlled entities recognised for the
year (see notes 2(p) and 2(q)).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R Mist

For the year ended 30 June 2008

EiFE 2008 6 H30 HiLFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:HBE @)
(Continued)

(Continued)
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its EASEEGBEE QTSR
interest in the associate or the jointly controlled HEEEEBBHEERE K
entity, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and SEELEREERLEET U
recognition of further losses is discontinued except BTrBREREIINGE  EAEE
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal BEITEEIHERT » A
or constructive obligations or made payments on &N B B A E R R AR A A R
behalf of the associate or the jointly controlled BRYN o FAUET S - ANEBEAL
entity. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in AR EEZEFERERAIR
the associate or the jointly controlled entity is BERATE2REREE U
the carrying amount of the investment under the REEFEBAAEETEE QR
equity method together with the Group’s long- FHEEHEEREFE2RE
term interests that in substance form part of the R o

Group’s net investment in the associate or the
jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from AEEHEABRE N TR LRIES
transactions between the Group and its associates BEEz2RZMELEZAREEE
and jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the w0 WEAREERELBEE ATW®
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate or HEZEFERESIESE S RKER
jointly controlled entity, except where unrealised EiEERACEEEELRANE
losses provide evidence of an impairment of Broh - EBNEF AR RIER ©

the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or KRBT NRBEYRNETEE
loss include financial assets held for trading and EEREEERB2EEDEA
are classified as current assets. Any attributable MBEE - EMELMRERAE
transaction costs are recognised in income K RERERER - £EERS
statement as incurred. At each balance sheet date BEEAEFNTEZEZANAE
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant B WSRkEE2FBERER
gain or loss being recognised in income statement. R RER o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(E%8)BRAF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R Rt

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Debtors, deposits and prepayments are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see note 2(q)), except where the
effect of discounting would be immaterial or the
discount is not measurable as the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms. In such cases, the
debtors, deposits and prepayments are stated at
cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts (see note 2(q)).

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognised in equity, until the investment is
disposed of or determined to be impaired (see
note 2(q)), at which time, the cumulative loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at

cost less any impairment losses.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 R R Bist

For the year ended 30 June 2008

EiFE 2008 6 H30 HILFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:HBIE @)
(Continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially HEBREAAEBERELRS
at fair value less attributable transaction costs. RADEBER  DRERE
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing T S 2R LU S AR AN B BR - T %)
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any REIASHEEBEDEE2ETE
difference between the amount initially recognised 2 HUBMAEEANMERBAR
and redemption value being recognised in income EREMEMSINEREHE KRS
statement over the period of the borrowings, RIER o

together with any interest and fees payable, using
the effective interest method.

Creditors, deposits received and accruals are EBERF  cWize R ETER
initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial RAARBEIDRER - REE
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance MeEouwiitTE 2 EERER
with note 2(u)(i), creditors, deposits received and I BEERR  EWRERES
accruals are subsequently stated at amortised BRHEZIRBERANAR  HS
cost unless the effect of discounting would be RFELTER  AEAEA
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. BR

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of BEDNDEBSHZREARAEE
a business combination or an investment in ARRHEREEHFHEE2RE  #
an associate or a jointly controlled entity over BAREEEGEWRES 2 TH5
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the EE - BBERIAEBEZAAE
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and BFEE -

contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated BE2ERAREHEEIE?S
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to R - BEEIRERSELE
cash-generating units and is tested annually fu YEBFESHEISAR
for impairment (see note 2(q)). In respect of MIEE2(q)) ° BiEiE QAR R FE
associates or jointly controlled entities, the HEREmMS  BmEZRAEK
carrying amount of goodwill is included in the AFEAGHEE N R R E =S E R
carrying amount of the interest in the associate or w2 REES -

jointly controlled entity.

@ Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(E%8)BRAF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R R

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of a business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity is recognised
immediately in income statement.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an
associate or a jointly controlled entity during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities: see note
2(q)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a

default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R BMist

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F6 5 30 AL FE

2. EETFTER =

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
(Continued)
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity () REEFRESEREMIEK
securities and other receivables FREtBI R AE (4E)

(Continued)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R R

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

2. EETFTER =

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
(Continued)
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity () REEFRESEREMIEK
securities and other receivables BRECHY 18 (4E)
(Continued)
For trade and other current — DA 68 AR A B BR
receivables and other financial HNESREAMRE

assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status and have
not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 R R Bist

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F 6 H 30 AL FE

2. EETFTER =

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
(Continued)
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity () REEFRESEREMEK
securities and other receivables FRECBI S (1E)
(Continued)
If in a subsequent period the amount EREBBEHEZR
of an impairment loss decreases Do MERL AR
and the decrease can be linked Bt BB BB B TR
objectively to an event occurring REBEBENSHE

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through income statement.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

For available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss that
has been recognised directly in
equity is removed from equity and is
recognised in income statement. The
amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in income statement
is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in income
statement.

B (F#8)BRAF

2. AREBES
gz R B o R
EEBEzEBETRE
BEYZEENRE
BEARBRZEE
REFRAFRZBRE
RIREREmEE
MY ERMEE -

RARHENKE
EmMs - ESEfE=
IR R
BERERRTM
BR 3R U 3R 3R
HR o Elam R P
BRANRTEER
Wy B R AN (A 40 BR
FAAEEEER
HMHE) HREFLQ
REENERE XL
HEZEEUER
Wi R PR VM
fTRERE °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R R

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

2. EETFTER =

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity

() REEFREHERMEK

available-for-sale financial assets
are not reversed through income
statement. Any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in equity.

Impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly and
any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in income

statement.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFS R R Mt

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F 6 H 30 AL FE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEitB¥ «

(Continued)
(q) Impairment of assets (Continued) () ZSERE®E)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) RMEERRE

Internal and external sources of information AEERESELEERASRE
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to AT RIRER KR
identify indications that the following assets DB TIEERESEE
may be impaired or, except in the case of WE - 2B ERZRE
goodwill, an impairment loss previously BEEER(EEREBER
recognised no longer exists or may have M RBEFBEESRA
decreased: BEE R -

— property, plant and equipment; —

— construction in progress; —
— pre-paid interests in leasehold land —
and classified as being held under
an operating lease;
— intangible assets; —
— investment in subsidiaries, —
associates and jointly controlled

entities; and

— goodwill. —

@ Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (&) ERAT —ZSZ\FER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATS R R bisE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its net selling
price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥5 iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2008

B Z2008% 6530 HIFFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(ii)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

(Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in income statement whenever the
carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

2. EETFIER =2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATS R R bisE

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(Continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited
to income statement in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable
proportion of production overheads. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less
all further costs to completion and direct selling
costs.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R BMist

For the year ended 30 June 2008

EiFE2008F 6 H30 HiILFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:THBE @)
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a

REeRRESHRERRTEAR
BE - FRRRIT M E A
B2ERER REPESR
M2RE ZEREVERBRE
REHNBHE BT MAEESE
BREBIA YEBAKR=MEA
REH - RERGEFERSRER

= RERREERTEEA
REREE IBAAEERE
EE -2 RITEX -

component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

(i)  Defined contribution retirement plans (i)  EEEHEFERKEE

EREMFRAKGTEIT 24t
NEEEEEBARHMEL
BekG BRAREANE
Iz RERFEREE
BITREKESHEMT 24
R HEHEHBEFENR
China and contributions payable under RPN o

Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans, including
contributions payable under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, central pension plans applicable
to employees in the People’s Republic of

the Labour Pension Act in Taiwan, are
recognised as an expense in the income
statement as incurred.

@ Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited FIE(&EB)BRAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R R

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

Defined benefit retirement plans

The Group’s net obligations in respect
of defined benefit retirement plans are
calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan
assets is deducted. The discount rates are
the interest rates at balance sheet date
of long term government bonds that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of
the Group’s obligations and Central Trust of
China where the pension fund is deposited.
The calculation is performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit
cost method. When the benefits of a plan
are improved, the portion of the increased
benefits relating to past services by
employees are recognised as an expense
in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the
benefits become vested. To the extent that
the benefits vest immediately, the expense
is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

In calculating the Group’s obligation in
respect of a plan, to the extent that any
cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or
loss exceeds ten percent of the greater
of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets,
that portion is recognised in the income
statement over the expected average
remaining working lives of the employees
participating in the plan. Otherwise, the
actuarial gain or loss is not recognised.

Where the calculation of the Group’s net
obligation results in a negative amount, the
asset recognised is limited to the net total of
any unrecognised actuarial losses and past
service costs and the present value of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R BMist

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F6 5 30 AL FE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Unclaimed annual leave

Obligation in respect of unclaimed annual
leave of employees is calculated based
on the estimated average number of days
of unclaimed annual leave, the average
amount of basic salary per employee and
the total number of employees at 30 June
2008. When the unclaimed annual leave
is utilised, the obligation will be released
accordingly.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability
that the share options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R R

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the income statement
for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits/accumulated
losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when
and only when the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic probability of
withdrawal.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 R R Bist

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F 6 H 30 AL FE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(i)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the "holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in income
statement on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in income statement over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note
2(u)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group under the guarantee, and
(i) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R R

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow is remote.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable

profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from

net profit as reported in the income statement

because it excludes items of income and expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it

further excludes income statement items that are

never taxable and deductible.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 R R Bist

For the year ended 30 June 2008

EiFE 2008 6 H30 HILFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:HBIE @)
(Continued)

@ Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

(Continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
difference can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interest in a
jointly controlled entity, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax
is charged or credited in the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATS R R bisE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or
a joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are

those family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that individual in

their dealings with the entity.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R BMist

For the year ended 30 June 2008

EiFE2008F 6 H30 HiILFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:THBE @)
(Continued)

@ Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows
of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest
of the Group and which represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations or is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary

acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It
also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
income statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATS R R biisE

Application of New And
Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new standard, amendment and
Interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA,
which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning on or after 1 July 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — INT10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC) — INT11

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material
effect on the results and financial position of the Group
for the current or prior accounting periods presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been
required.

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 R R Bist

For the year ended 30 June 2008

EiFE 2008 6 H30 HILFE
3. Application of New And 3. FAMREBIINEE

B ER5#H| )

Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continueq)

NSRBI IR ATERAR T BB R AR {E 1 R
ERZHR] - BB R] RAEE R ER R
B AEEEAFEHEBMBRELE
BIERMBHARENTE -

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new HKFRSs is expected to be in the
period of the initial application.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial BRETEAE1E HERRZZ5
Statements' (R4ERT)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs' BB ERE 23 EERAE'
(&1835T)
HKAS 27 (Revised)  Consolidated and Separate BEBEERNE 27 RERBLME
Financial Statements® (#1&3T) eSS
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments BB ERNERY TEEMKEIARE
(Amendments) and Obligations Arising on REBETEL BEEZER
Liquidation' 2 15R (BT A)
HKFRS 2 Vesting Conditions and HBMEHREEN BRESHRERECE
(Amendment) Cancellations' 58237 (BRI AK)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)  Business Combinations? BBUBREREN  EHEH’
5B 3 9% (L1B3T)
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments' EBUHREER menE
E8
HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service Concession B8 (ERTERER REBTERE
Arrangements® BZEe) 2B
F12%
HK(IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes* R (B BRER TREHE"
BZEE)— 2B
%135
HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a BB (ERMEHRER BB ERE19

BZEe) 2B
F14%

Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum

3 RERNEE
RE - RIERMER

Funding Requirements and

Their Interaction® ERBEZENE
&’

! Effective for financial period commencing on or ! H-ZERF-A—HBHUE
after 1 January 2009 FEHBEN

2 Effective for financial period commencing on or 2 H-ZZhELA—HRmLUE
after 1 July 2009 FEHBELENR

8 Effective for financial period commencing on or 8 H-ZZENF—-H—HExRUE
after 1 January 2008 FEHBEN

‘ Effective for financial period commencing on or 4 H-ZZENFtHA—HExRUE
after 1 July 2008 FEHBELENR

@ Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(&EB)BRAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R R

Accounting Estimates and
Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies, management makes various estimates based on

past experiences, expectations of the future and other

information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty

that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in

the financial statements are disclosed below:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account of their estimated residual value. The
determination of the useful lives and residual value
involve management’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful life of the fixed assets and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the depreciation for the
year.

Impairment of fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets

Determining whether fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the fixed assets, goodwill
and other non-current assets have been allocated.
The calculation of value in use requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥5 iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F 6 H 30 AL FE

4. Accounting Estimates and
Judgement (continueq)

(Continued)

(c)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Income taxes

At 30 June 2008 and 2007, a deferred tax asset
of HK$432,000 and HK$7,483,000 in relation
to unused tax losses has been recognised
respectively as set out in note 13(a). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses of HK$334,619,000 (2007:
HK$322,070,000) due to the unpredictability of
future taxable profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are
less or more than expected, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the income
statement for the period in which such a reversal
or further recognition takes place.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥5 R Rzt

Financial Instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity risk arising from
its equity investments in other entities. These risks are
limited by the Group’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
debtors, deposits and prepayments. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit is offered to customers following
financial assessment and an established payment
record. Security of properties is obtained from
certain customers. Credit limits are set for all
customers and these are exceeded only with the
approval of senior company officers. Customers
considered to be with credit risk are traded on
a cash basis. General credit terms are payment
by the end of the month following the month in
which sales took place. Regular review and follow
up actions are carried out on overdue amounts
to minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk.
An aging analysis of the debtors is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise
any credit risk associated with these debtors. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk in view of its large number of customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantee which would expose the Group to credit
risk. Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
debtors, deposits and prepayments are set out in
note 26.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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5. €T H =

5. Financial Instruments (Continueqd)

104

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and
financial resources to ensure that a healthy
financial position is maintained such that cash
inflows from operating activities together with
undrawn committed banking facilities are sufficient
to meet the requirements for loan repayments,
daily operational needs, capital expenditure,
as well as potential business expansion and
development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date
of the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and
the Company can be required to pay:
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

22008 F 6530 HIEFE
5. Financial Instruments (continueq) 5. &ftT R
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEHELEEE)
Group
ks 10
2008 2007
ut 2t 3 ZRRLE
Total Total
contractual Within ~ More than ~ More than contractual Within-~ Morethan More than
undiscounted 1 year 1 year 2years undscounted 1 year 1 year 2 years
cash flow oron butwithin  but within cash flow oron  butwithin  but within

Carrying &YEEE  demand  2years  Syears  Camying AXEHE  demand 2 years 5 years
amount  REHE 1EARK  1ENLE  2ENEE  emont  BERE  1EARA  1ENLE  2FHLE
i a5 Sl 2R 5ENA BEE k] 4BA 2EMA 5EMA
HK$’000  HKS$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
EEFT  BEFT  AETT BEFT EETT BETL BT BETL BEFT BETR

Bank loans RITER 212,000 213,416 213,416 - - 142,104 142,405 142,405 - -
Creditors, deposits received ~ JEREZ SRS

and accruals REMER 27048 207148 217148 = - 29 19 321249 - -

Bills payable EfEE - - - - - 5407 5407 5407 - -

Amounts due to associates FEfBENTE 23,093 23,093 23,093 - - 23,093 23,093 23,093 - -

Obligations under finance leases HEBEEE " 746 223 204 319 218 323 114 114 %

Other non-current liabilities EthRBaE - - - - - 174 174 - - 174

452,958 454,403 453,880 204 319 492,325 492,671 492,288 114 269

Company
543
2008 2007
mt 2t 3 ZRRLE
Total Total

contractual Within ~ More than ~ More than contractual Within -~ Morg than ~ More than

undiscounted 1 year 1 year 2years undscounted 1 year 1 year 2 years

cash flow oron butwithin  but within cash flow oron  butwithn  but within

Carrying &YEEE  demand  2years  Syears  Camying AXEHE  demand 2 years 5 years
amount  RERE 1FRTH  1EMEE  2ENEE  amont  BERE  1EAZA  1FMLE  2ENLE
IREE a5 i 2R 5ENR BEE g 4BO 2EMA 5EMA
HK$’000  HKS$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$S'000  HK$'000
EEFL  BEFT  AETT BEFT  BETT BEFL BT BETR BEFT BETR

Bank loans BIER 30,000 30,001 30,001 - - 10,000 10,004 10,004 - -

Creditors, deposits received and ~ EREZ - BliRe

accruals REHER 9,724 9,724 9,724 - - 6,035 6,035 6,035 - -

Obligations under finance leases HEREEE 99 114 63 51 - 153 17 63 63 51

Amounts due to subsidiaries  ERKEATERE 1,562,024 1,562,024 1,562,024 - - 1468457 1468457 1468457 - -
1,601,847 1,601,863 1,601,812 51 - 1484645 1484673 1484559 63 51

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FIE(&F#)ARAT —ZZNFFH  FI0k
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BIZ2008 %6 530 HILFEZE
5. Financial Instruments (continued) 5. 2 TH=

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank deposits and bank loans.

(i) Interest rate profile

REBMOFRERERRERIT
ERRERN -

()  FIEHRR

The following table details the interest rate TRHAJINGEEBLRER
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s RAATRITERRET
bank deposits and bank loans at the BERRZER
balance sheet date:
Group
FEE
2008 2007
—EE0\E —EELHF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a rate p.a
BRERE BIRFR=
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
BETT BT
Fixed rate assets: FREE:
Bank deposits RITFER 3.34 409,727 3.47 98,843
Variable rate assets/ FREE (BfE):
(liabilities):
Cash at bank RITHER 0.83 122,354 1.19 194,240
Bank loans RITER 2.38 (212,000) 476 (142,104)

I[)f§] Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(&EB)BRAR
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5. Financial Instruments (continuea)

(i)

(ii)

For the year ended 30 June 2008

220084 6530 HIFFE

5. & THR =

Interest rate profile (continued) (i) FIERLR ()
Company
AAF
2008 2007
k- - J18- 3 —ETtH
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BERERNZE BRERZ
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
EETFT BT
Fixed rate assets: FEREE:
Bank deposits RITHER 3.34 306,843 4.50 35,415
Variable rate assets/ ZRE&EE (&) :
(liabilities):
Cash at bank RITF 0.0023 48,092 0.29 6,538
Bank loans RITER 1.40 (30,000) 4.00 (10,000)
Sensitivity analysis (i) EEESH

At 30 June 2008, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 to 150
basis point in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax
and revenue reserve by approximately
HK$3,432,000 (2007: HK$ 845,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date. The 50 to 150 basis
point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet
date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2007.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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5. & THR =

5. Financial Instruments (continuea)

108

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, deposits, and
borrowings that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily Australian
dollars (“AUD”), Malaysia Ringgits (“MYR”),
Singapore dollars (“SGD”) and United States
dollars (“USD”). As HK$ is pegged to USD,
the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between HK$ and USD to be
insignificant for transactions denominated in USD
which are entered into by entities with a functional
currency of HK$.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following tables show the details of
the Group’s and the Company’s exposure
at the balance sheet date to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which
they relate.

AUD
AT
'000
i

AEEAEHUARTEBEQTNY
REEBLUMNEWIHENHE - &
B ROTEFRREENIIER
o MERBEIERBRTF
KA - HIRTRETT ° B
REBTEEXTHE  BAKEE
PEARBAERTEAREE
25 FHLUBEENEERDN
BENRAZEARZTEELER
RESNERBE o

(i) REZINEELE

TRIAEERARFAR
HERBLERARNES
WU EBHEN S #R
EERREMAZ ZHE
[\ B fE i EE AR D AT o

Group
450
2008 2007
I 2% RRLE

HK§  MYR  SGD usb HKS SGD usD
A% BAEDS HMSE % & PR £
'000 '000 '000 '000 000 000 000
FFE FE FE Fi Fi A

Debtors, deposits and prepayments MR,  RERENR -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELE 10,027
Creditors, deposits received BB Ehize

and accruals REER =

202 - 180 167 %7 189 240
1731 16,360 - 18898 4283 O
) - - (49 6% - (199)

B (F#8)BRAF
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Z2008%F 6530 HILFE
5. Financial Instruments (continued) 5. €T H @
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) EEmEEE)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) REZIMERE (E)
Company
b YN
2008 2007
“EI\E ZERtE

AUD MYR SGD usb SGD usDh
BE BAEEY WMMT  ER Ahan ER
’000 '000 ’000 '000 ‘000 ‘000
fi  FE FE R FA A

Debtors, deposits and RS - BER

prepayments A - - 189 - 189 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRES5H 10,027 16,360 - 18,525 - 1134
Creditors, deposits BB CREER

received and accruals [ESTE S - - = (239) - (239)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FEIE(&#&)ERAR —ZZN\FFH Y
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EiFE 2008 6 H30 HiLFE
5. Financial Instruments (continueq) 5. &I H @
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) HEEDIT
The following table indicates the TRIHELEEBHAE
approximate change in the Group’s profit BEEAFENINEER
after tax (and revenue reserve) in response o IR A8 E T RE AV B L B
to reasonably possible changes in the TEBZBRBERZN(R
foreign exchange rates to which the Group W B EEENBLY
has significant exposure at the balance BE) o
sheet date.
Group
F£E
2008 2007
—ETN\E —EELE
Effect on Effect on
profit after profit after
tax and tax and
Increase/ revenue Increase/ revenue
(decrease) reserve (decrease) reserve
in foreign Increase/ in foreign Increase/
exchange (decrease) exchange (decrease)
rates RBiER rates BB ERF
SEEE  RKERE HEEE Rz e
L#(F8)  #m/GRY) LA/ (T%) &M/ (D)
HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BETT
AUD B 2.79% 2,106 — —
(2.79%) (2,106) - -
MYR BRADE 4.46% 1,742 - -
(4.46%) (1,742) — —
SGD IR T 0.94% 10 0.94% 9
(0.94%) (10) (0.94%) (9)
UsD E 0.18% 286 0.18% (66)
(0.18%) (286) (0.18%) 66

IRI0] Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(&EB)BRAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R Rt

5. Financial Instruments (continuea)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
pbalance sheet date and had been applied
to the Group’s exposure to currency risk
for financial instruments in existence at
that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between HK$ and USD would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of USD against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2007.

The Group is exposed to equity price change
arising from investments in equity securities.
As the carrying amount of such investments is
insignificant compared to the total assets of the
Group, the management considers the exposure
to equity price risk to be insignificant.

All significant financial assets and liabilities are
carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 30 June 2007 and 2008.
The carrying amounts of non-trade balances
with holding companies and fellow subsidiaries
approximate the fair value due to the relatively
short-term maturity of these financial assets and
liabilities.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
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6. Segment Reporting

The Group principally operates in four segments and the

specific products of each segment are as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Food

Manufacturing and distribution of a broad range of
food products including flour, edible oils, vegetable
fats and other processed foods for the catering
industries.

Detergent

Manufacturing and distribution of household
cleaning products including liquid dish washing
detergent, laundry powder, fabric softener and

floor cleaner.

Distribution

Trading and distribution of a wide range of
products such as flour and detergent products in
Hong Kong.

Packaging

Manufacturing and supply of easy-open-ends and
aluminium cans for beverage industry. In February
2008, the Company sold the packaging business
to an independent party, details of which are set
out in note 14.

Other operating segments represent the segments which

do not meet the quantitative threshold for determining

reportable segments. These include investment holding,

agency products, e-marketing and property holding

activities.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Segment Reporting (continueq)
Geographical segments

The Group manages its business on a worldwide basis,
but participates in three principal geographical areas:

(1) Mainland China

Manufacturing and distribution of flour, edible oils,
detergent and packaging products.

(2) Hong Kong

Trading and distribution of flour, detergent and
agency products.

(3) Taiwan

Manufacturing and supply of easy-open-ends and
aluminum cans for beverage industry. The Group
no longer had business in Taiwan after disposal of
its packaging business in February 2008.

6.

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE
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B F 2008 6 A 30 A 1L F[E
6. Segment Reporting (continued) 6. PEPIRE
(a) Business segments (a) ZEBEHE
For the year ended 30 June 2008 BE-—FFNENA=1+HI
Dis-
continued
operation
Continuing operations RxJla
e e fEEgS
Inter-
segment
Distri- glimination Con-
Food  Detergent bution Others Total  Packagng  ®AFE  solidated
®F  RERR  ERA% it 8t BRER igie &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Bfr  BEFr BEFr BT BT BT BEir #EFR
) Tumover 2]
External sales HigE 1,669,050 176,919 344,004 4397 2094370 483,349 - 257119
Inter-segment sales EAUBNHE 202,329 30,152 - 475 U556 - (24565 -
1,771,379 216,071 344,004 8972 2,340,026 483,349 (245,656) 2,571,719
i) Segment results PHEE 80971 5506 51,003 (28517 100,053 6447 - 115,500
Net interest income/(expenses) ~ BRISWA/(it) - - - 8 8 (1,586) - (1,502)
Share of proft of a jointly R RZ
controled entty AR 380 - - - 3347 - - 3,347
Profit hefore taxation REaER 12,484 4,861 117,345
Net gain on disposal of HEREER
packaging busingss RN - 8,803 8,803
Taxation (expenses)/credt BERE)/BA (11,220) 824 (10,396)
Profit for the year KEERH 101,264 14,488 115,752
iy Depreciation and amortisation ~ AEE
forthe year FERES 1909 97 1% oM 13818 - 5022
(i) Charge of provision for doubtful ~ REHERE
debts b 261 - 124 - 386 506 - 891
(v} Segment assets AEE 1,038,619 48972 4,420 436,470 1,598,481 - - 1,598,481
Interests in a jointly controlled ~~ F 4R
entity and associates REEDARR 63,268 - - 24,581 87849 - - 87,849
Unallocated assets FAWEE 51,332
Total assets BEE 1,737,662
(i) Segment liabilties AHEE 166,466 33,022 9435 8,648 21757 - - 217,51
Unallocated liabiliies FOHEE 248,291
Total liabilties L 465,862
(vii) - Capital expenditure incurred rEE
during the year BAHY 32,753 307 1,39 5,240 39,695 3,289 - 42,984

IRP} Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 B (F#) BRAT —ZTT/\FFHK
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

E2008% 6530 H1LFE
6. Segment Reporting (continued) 6. PEPIRE
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) XEBEPEE)
For the year ended 30 June 2007 BE-_FFLtENA=1AHI
Dis-
continued
operation
Continuing operations RxJla
RESEEH fexi
Inter-
segment
Distri- glimination Con-
Food  Detergent bution Others Tol  Packagng  ZAHE  solidated

BB AEAR  EmAE H At BEER i &8
HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HK$000
BRTR BBFR BRTT ERTR BRTR ERFR BRTn AT

) Tumover 2]

External sales HigE 1147721 134,454 283,307 3,853 1,669,335 728,870 - 2,298,205
Inter-segment sales EAPENEE 141,642 37185 126 10,144 189,097 - (189,097 -
1,289,363 171,639 283433 18997 1,758,432 728,870 (189,097) 2,298,205
fil Segment resuls PrE 75,066 86 40310 (83 W 9565 — 103,940
Net interest (expenses)/income RIS (%itk) /A - - - (4639) (4639) 2 - (4,610)

Share of profit of a jointly el RZ
controlled entity BEHER 2,908 - - - 2,908 - - 2,008
Profit before taxation BEaRR 92,644 9504 102,238
Taxation credit/(expenses) BERA/(R) 8,998 (1,138) 7,860
Profi for the year REERF 101,642 8,456 110,008

(ii)  Depreciation and amortisation for ~ A&
the year HEREH 40,08 1134 2 4899 46,813 19,766 - 66,579

(v (Write-backl/charge of provision ~ REFEREM

for doubtful debts (BE)/%H (221) - 4 - (184) 117 - (1,355)

(v)  Segment assets IHEE 841,528 51,933 48917 79,159 1,021,637 597,039 - 1,618,576
Interests in ajointly controlled ~ FREIER

entity and assoclates REELTER 59921 - - 24,581 84,502 - - 84,502

Unallocated assets FOWEE 8,608

Total assets BEE 1,711,686

(v Seqment iabiies 38% 1005 3343 7298 693 40 18T - 33805

Unallocated liabiliies FIHER 177,564

Totalliabilties EET 514,459

(| Capial expendiure inoured ~ KEE
during the year BARR 6,150 106 32 5,623 12610 8,483 - 21,093

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 ®|E (&) BRAE —ZTZ)\FEHR
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

B F 2008 6 A 30 A 1L F[E
6. Segment Reporting (continueq) 6. HEBERE =)
(b) Geographical segments (b) HESEP
For the year ended 30 June 2008 BE-—FFNENA=1+HI
Mainland
China Hong Kong Taiwan  Consolidated

HE AR B8 =Y =8
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

BEFT  BETT W BETFTrT  BETT

Continuing operations FEGELER

External sales HIMNEE 1,722,361 372,009 - 2,094,370

Segment assets DHERE 1,173,959 563,703 - 1,737,662

Capital expenditure incurred ~ NEE
during the year BAREAX 30,580 9,115 - 39,695

Discontinued operation BRI BB LR

External sales HIMNEE 243,442 - 239,907 483,349

Segment assets PHEE - - - -

Capital expenditure incurred ~ &NEE
during the year BAREY 2,817 - 472 3,289

IR[§] Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (E#)BRAT —TTN\FFHK
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

Z 20086 H30HIEFE
6. Segment Reporting (continued) 6. PEPIRE =)
(b) Geographical segments (continued) (b) HEDEEE)
For the year ended 30 June 2007 BE-_FFLtENA=1AHI

Mainland

China Hong Kong Taiwan Consolidated
B K RE &8 =) &8
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

BEFT  BETT W BETFTT  BETT

Continuing operations FEGELER

External sales HIMEE 1,262,761 306,574 - 1,569,335
Segment assets DHERE 896,968 217,679 - 1,114,647
Capital expenditure incurred  NEE

during the year BARRY 6,255 6,355 - 12,610
Discontinued operation BRI EE LR
External sales HIMEE 319,618 - 409,252 728,870
Segment assets PHEE 163,621 - 433,418 597,039
Capital expenditure incurred ~ REE

during the year ERFEX 6,072 - 2,411 8,483

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (&#8)ARAE —ZT\FEER
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B F 2008 6 A 30 A 1Lt FZE
Juge iy
7. Turnover 7. BEEH
The Company is an investment holding company and AARA—BREZERAR  HMBA
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on AMNEEEKFVNREI17T8EEE 183
pages 178 to 183. Ho
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods EEERRETHIINEFARNEERE
supplied to external customers as well as service and EMREREASWA - REBREEE
rental income. An analysis of the Group’s turnover is set DHTWMT
out below:
2008 2007
—EENE —EELE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT JBHEF T
Continuing operations BIECEER
Sales of goods HEEm 2,086,810 1,562,220
Service and rental income RERBESWA 7,560 7115
2,094,370 1,569,335
Discontinued operation ORISR
Sales of goods HEDm 482,460 727,811
Service and rental income R RAEE WA 889 1,059
483,349 728,870

IRk Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(&EB)BRAR
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

22008 6530 A1 FE
Other Income 8. HuIkA
2008 2007
—EEN\E —EZLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B F T
Continuing operations FEEEER
Management fee income EEBWA 2,690 2,685
Sales of scrap HERER 2,736 1,523
Provision for doubtful debts
written back RIFBRAEE O 3 = 184
Net exchange gain FOE R s 35,515 16,135
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBREEE R 8,423 1,496
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BREMNB QAW 2,009 802
Miscellaneous Hit 4,361 5182
55,734 28,007
Discontinued operation CRILEEER
Sales of scrap HERER 95 434
Provision for doubtful debts
written back RIFBRAEE O 3 - 1,171
Net exchange gain FOE R 6,923 7,010
(Loss)/gain on disposal of fixed
assets HEBEEERE(BX) W (315) 146
Miscellaneous Hit 893 844
7,596 9,605

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATS 3R R i

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F6 5 30 AL FE

9. Net Interest Income/(Expenses) 9.

FHBBA (

ZH)

2008 2007
—EEN\E —EZLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Continuing operations FHEEEER
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RAFAZZEEZRITE
wholly repayable within five years RRBEBIZHRE (5,869) (7,699)
Interest on finance leases MEEENFEZH (16) (16)
Less: Interest income B RB WA 5,969 3,076
84 (4,639)
Discontinued operation CRILEEER
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RAFREZIEEBEZIRITE
wholly repayable within five years MEEIZWRE (2,549) (1,728)
Less: Interest income 8RB A 963 1,752
(1,586) 29

The Group’s effective borrowing interest rate for the year
was approximately 3.6% (2007: 4.9%) per annum.

REREENEREBESF
(ZE2ZLF 1 4.9%) °

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 MJE(E#)BRAT —ZSZT)\EER
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10. Profit before Taxation

For the year ended 30 June 2008

220084 6530 HIFFE

10. BaBipiaEFl

2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Continuing operations FEGEEER
Profit before taxation is arrived BRBADEAE
at after charging/(crediting): MR (5T A) -
Staff costs (including directors’ B IR (BIEES
remuneration — note 11) e — it 17)
— Wages, salaries and allowances — I¥& - HeMER 128,451 102,829
— Equity settled share based — RBRAEEHEL
transaction BROAEENTS 358 569
— Pension costs — BRARE AR
— Defined contribution — ERRMER
retirement plans BRIRETE 8,220 6,870
137,029 110,268
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETE & 1,084 810
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEERE 42,633 40,512
Amortisation of trademarks [t £ - 3,676
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE ey 2,791 2,625
Charge of provision for doubtful debts ~ FIZBRE# X H 385 -
KEHEWMEN
Operating lease rental of properties HEeER 2,048 1,022
Cost of inventories (note 25(b)) TFEA (K 25()) 1,767,532 1,272,946
Net proceeds from disposal HEBREEEN
of fixed assets RS RIEF 58 (11,120) (5,457)
Less: Carrying value of fixed assets B BEEEREE 2,697 3,961
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEERE (8,423) (1,496)
Rental income less outgoings HEWARAX (7,554) (6,997)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

BIE (&%) BRLA
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F 6 H 30 AL FE

10. Profit before Taxation (continuea)

10. BBipnEF =)

2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Discontinued operation CRILEEERE
Profit before taxation is arrived BREARAE
at after charging/(crediting): HIEVAG PN
Staff costs (including directors’ BIKN(BEES
remuneration — note 11) e — At 17)
— Wages, salaries and allowances  — I & - #i& k28, 46,919 60,749
— Pension costs — BRARE A
— Defined contribution — EREMFERK
retirement plans 58 805 2,062
— Defined benefit retirement — EFEBERIEMXK
plans (note 32(a)(v)) HE
(H15E 32(2)(v)) 1,224 1,824
48,948 64,635
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETE & 273 628
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEETE 13,751 19,682
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE 1t 67 84
Charge of provision for doubtful debts RIEIREHEZH 506 -
Operating lease rental of properties  &E&EHEWEDN
HeEA 76 471
Cost of inventories (note 25(b)) BFEHA (B 250)) 449,604 687,128
Net proceeds from disposal HEBEEEN
of fixed assets P8 FRIE R 58 (69) (653)
Less: Carrying value of fixed assets & - Bl EEEREE 384 507
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed HEREEEN
assets Bx/ () 315 (146)
Rental income less outgoings HEWARBEX (694) (1,069)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

B (F#8)BRAF
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

22008 6530 A1 FE
11. Directors’ and Senior MEERGRTHAE
Executives’ Emoluments B &
(a)  The directors’ emoluments of the Company and its (a) REBFEQARAKAE—BAT—
subsidiaries calculated in accordance with Section Bt E 2R AT REMBATHN
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are EEMELBEOT
as follows:
Group
b3
Basic
salary/ Retirement Share-
Directors’ schemes based
fee contributions Housing  payments

H&/ Bonus  BIKEA  benefits  WURHA 2008
BEHe T4 HEMR  EERN EEzAR ZBBAf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$’000
BEFL  BEFL BEFT BEFL BETT BEFT

Executive director BITES
LEUNG Wai Fung PR 1,950 793 195 746 258 3,942

Non-executive directors FHTEE

WHANG Sun Tze BLE 120 - - - - 120
KWEK Leng Hai 45 180 - - _ _ 180
TAN Lim Heng B 120 - - - - 120
TSANG Cho Tai “EE 160 — _ _ _ 160
Alternate director RiTES

IKEDA Hiromi HHAEE _ - _ _ _ _

Independent non-executive  BIFHITES

directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement EES 195 - - - - 195
DING Wai Chuen TR 175 - - - - 175
IRIE Yasuaki NLEH 120 - - - - 120
—¥F)\&E5A=1H
Year ended 30 June 2008 LEE 3,020 793 195 746 258 5,012

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FIE (F#)ERAR —ZTNFFH FHK
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F 2008 6 A 30 A 1Lt FZE

11. Directors’ and Senior 1. EERSRITHRAS
Executives’ Emoluments (continued) AT
(a) (continued) (a) (#&)
Group
b3
Basic

salary/ Retirement Share-

Directors’ schemes based

fee contributions Housing  payments

&/ Bonus MR benefits  LARAE 2007
EE20k T4 HEMR  EERN EHzAR ZT%tE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$’000
BEFL  BEFL BEFT BEFL BETT BEFT

Executive director BiTEs
LEUNG Wai Fung PiElE 1,896 956 142 636 241 3,871

Non-executive directors EHTES

WHANG Sun Tze BLE 100 - - - - 100
KWEK Leng Hai g4i5 151 - — _ _ 151
TAN Lim Heng 0 ¥ 100 - — _ _ 100
TSANG Cho Tai 2% 140 - - _ _ 140
Alternate director RiTES

IKEDA Hiromi HHAEE _ - _ _ _ _

Independent non-executive  BIFHITES

directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement EES 164 - - - - 164
DING Wai Chuen TER 150 - - - - 150
IRIE Yasuaki NIZEH 14 - - - - 14

2,715 956 142 636 24 4,690

Retired/resigned as: B8
Non-executive directors EHTES
The late WHANG Tar Choung ~ EMEAXE 1,042 - - - - 1,042
James ENG, Jr. HEHE 28 - - - - 28
HO King Cheung AeR 28 - - - - 28
Independent non-executive  BIFHITEE

directors
NG Ping Kin, Peter i 45 - - - - 45
MATSUMURA Hirokazu BAKE 86 - - - - 86

ZEZtERA=TH

Year ended 30 June 2007 LFE 3,944 956 142 636 241 5,919

IPZ] Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE(F#®)ERAT —TTNFFR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATS R R bisE

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continuea)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

(i) Basic salary/Directors’ fee — The amounts
paid and payable to non-executive directors are
directors’ fees. Other amounts are basic salaries
paid to an executive director.

(ii) Bonuses paid/payable for the year are
performance related.

(iii) Apart from the directors’ fees, the independent
non-executive directors received no other
emoluments from the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

(iv) There was no arrangement under which a
director had waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

The five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included one
director, details of whose remuneration are set out
above. The remaining employees’ emoluments are

analysed as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 A1 FE

M. EERSHITH AN S BN

(a)

(b)

(&)

(#&)

BifeE -

() e EEwE — FUTE
EUESHEEFAWE - #
TEEUFHFEFHRE

(ii) REEZCHR AL

(iii) BMTEEWEN BYFEH
TESLRBWEMAAFR
FARLATZHBLARNE
BN & o

(iv) YEIVNESRERBER
ZWMEMEAZHE -

AERERANES

TEBRRBANESEE—RE
EHWENHEREIRNEX - &
TEENHFESHBUT !

2008 2007
—EEN\E —EBLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BT T

Salaries, bonus, housing e 14 BEERERN

benefits and share-based RURHHER

payments (Note) ZASFR(BEE) 11,385 6,936
Retirement schemes contributions EKIERIET 21t 5%k 123 130
11,508 7,066

Note:

The amount in current year includes a pension payment
of HK$4.5 million paid to a senior executive who retired
from the Group in February 2008.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 F|E(EF#) AR QA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFS R R Mt

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F 6 H 30 AL FE

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continuea)

(b) The five highest paid individuals (b)

(continued)

The number of employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands was:

M. EERSHITH AN S BN

(&)

AEREBANES (#)

MeBTIRENESHE W
T

2008 2007

HKS$ EBE —BTN\E —EBRLHF
1,000,001 — 1,500,000 1,000,001 — 1,500,000 - 1
1,600,001 — 2,000,000 1,600,001 — 2,000,000 2 2
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 — 2,500,000 1 1
6,000,001 — 6,500,000 6,000,001 — 6,500,000 1 —
4 4

The remuneration of certain individuals represents
remuneration received in respect of services
rendered to the Company and its Hong Kong and
overseas subsidiaries.

ETRENHMESRWERBALQ
ARARBTERBRBIWEL
AN E -

12. Taxation (Expenses)/Credit 12. BIE(ZH) WA
(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at (a) AEERBEBEEZATNFE

the rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies
operating in Hong Kong.

Overseas taxation represents tax charge on the
estimated taxable profits of certain subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China and Taiwan,
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
regions.

Certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China

are subject to income tax rates ranging from 18%
to 25% (2007: 15% to 27%).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (&%) R AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATS R R bisE

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 A1 FE

12. Taxation (Expenses)/Credit 12. HBIE(ZH) WA @

(continued)

(b)  The income tax (expenses)/credit represents the (b) FBH(ZH) WAREHERS
sum of the tax currently payable and deferred BERIELEHIENALE -HEZ
taxation. The taxation is made up as follows: MR

2008 2007
—EENE —EE+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT JBHEF T
Continuing operations FHEGEER
Current tax: REBIER:
Hong Kong taxation EBHE (2,781) (3,187)
(Under)/over-provision in LRI EEZ(RR)/
respect of prior years HBRERE (1,227) 19,160
(4,008) 15,973
Overseas taxation N E (7,557) (7,833)
(Under)/over-provision in LRI EEZ(RR)/
respect of prior years BERRE (278) 581
(7,835) ~  (7.252)
Deferred taxation (note 13(a)): IEREFLIE (BT 13(@)) -
Currentyear ATEE o e’ 2rr
(11,220) 8,998
Discontinued operation CRILEEER
Current taxation: REHIE :
Overseas taxation BINHIE (967) (4,314)
Under-provision in respect of
prior years LAIFEz2 TN RRBE (224) -
(1,191) (4,314)
Deferred taxation (note 13(a)): IEIERLIE (BT 13(a)) -
Currentyear AEE 205 8176
824 (1,138)
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited BEIE(E8)BRLT
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F6 5 30 AL FE

12. Taxation (Expenses)/Credit

(continued)

()

The income tax (expenses)/credit for the year can

12. BIE(ZH), W @

(©  WERPBRBANENERFEZ

be reconciled to the profit before taxation per HE(EZH) WARSHOT -
income statement as follows:
2008 2007
—EBENE —ZEELE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Profit before taxation BREE AR R
From continuing operations BRELEER 112,484 92,644
From a discontinued operation BHORIEEESER 4,861 9,594
117,345 102,238
Applicable tax rate (%) EABLE (%) 16.5 17.5
Tax on profit before taxation, REARETE 2R
calculated at the applicable ANEA 2 Fi18
tax rate (19,362) (17,892)
Tax effect of non-deductible B £ AR EE 2
expenses in determining ALY S
taxable profit (1,239) (1,986)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue EEZRHI AW A Z B TE
in determining taxable profit % 4,227 6,720
Tax effect of current year’s tax RFUBRZAREER
losses not recognised BEBHRESE (5,158) (5,277)
Tax effect of prior year’s FRARUBIFEERT U
unrecognised tax losses BRZHBEE 2B
utilised in the year g 5,236 3,489
Tax effect of entitlement to tax BN B AR ZERE
holiday by overseas subsidiaries BRI 2 FHiE & 6,943 3,613
Tax effect of profit attributable to  FE{L 1t [5]32%= &1 1E B2 1953
a jointly controlled entity Flefge 552 509
10% surtax on unappropriated BREMB AR ZADE
earnings of Taiwan subsidiaries BERINE10% FX (82) (2,328)
Effect of different tax rates EH fhith B A B
of subsidiaries operating in NEAIRZTEBREZH
other jurisdictions 24 (1,418) 869
Effect of change in tax rate BRSBoBETE 1,436 -
(Under)/over-provision in UAIEEZ(FRR)/
prior years AR A (1,729) 19,741
Others HAth 198 402
Tax (expense)/credit for the year — ZNEEFFEH (ZH)
VL ON (10,396) 7,860
Tax (expense)/credit attributable  1HE KL ¥ FTEH
to continuing operations (Xd) WA (11,220) 8,998
Tax credit/(expense) attributable B & 1k K& £ TSR
to a discontinued operation WA (ZH) 824 (1,138)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

22008 6530 HiEFE
13. Deferred Taxation 13. IREHIE
(a) Group (a) AEHEH
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EHReEEBBERTRRANEL
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and RE(EE) BERERAEE
the movements thereon during the current and RUGIFEZEBMT :
prior years are as follows:
Accelerated  Impairment Future
tax of fixed benefit of Land
depreciation assets Tax expenses appreciation
i EF&AE  Provisions Trademarks losses BRAR tax Others Total

hEhE W #h BE OHBER  GNRE DUNER At aif
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  AKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000
EEFR  EETR BT BETn BRFr BT BRTa BRTn ERTx

At1 July 2006 ZEERELA-H 11,274 8.911) {1777 825 (6,305) (1,586) 7610 11 1,201
Charged/(credited) to income  IEHARE/ (3 A)
statement (note 12(b)) (& 12) (621) 893 (118) (825) (1,210) (532) - (1,040) (3,453)
Exchange adjustments EREE (1.117) (395) (35 - 2 10 (38) (18) (1,561)
At30 June 2007 ZERLEARZTH 9,5% (8.413) (1,930) - (7483) (2108) 7572 (897) (3,729)
At1 July 2007 ZERLELR-F 95% (8.413) (1,930) - (7483) (2108) 7572 (897) (3,729)
Charged/(credited) to income  IBEHARE/ (3 A)
statement (note 12(b)) (& 12) 1,001 (3632) 462 - (527) (1,042) - 1100 (2,638)
Disposal of packaging
business HEBLERER (819) - 595 - 7901 3,043 (7823) (201) 2,696
Exchange adjustments EREE (2,586) (1,675) - - (329) 107 251 - (4,226)
At 30 June 2008 —EE\ERAZ1E 7132 (18,720) 873) - (432) - - 2 (7.891)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax UTHWIEERIBEE DA
balances for financial reporting purposes: TEREFIBRFFA :
2008 2007
—ETN\E —EZLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEREEE (1,044) (9,598)
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE 8,935 13,321
7,891 3,723

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FIE(F#)ERAR —ZTNFFH FHY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5 iR R Mist

For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F6 5 30 AL FE

13. Deferred Taxation (continuea)

13. IBXEBIE )

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

At the balance sheet date, the Group has
unused tax losses of HK$337,313,000 (2007:
HK$352,828,000) available for offset against
future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$2,694,000
(2007: HK$30,758,000) for such losses. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$334,619,000 (2007:
HK$322,070,000) due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$9,052,000 and HK$524,000 (2007:
HK$12,588,000 and HK$NIl) that will expire within
five years and three years respectively. Other
losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has
temporary differences of HK$227,396,000 (2007:
HK$225,334,000) arising from impairment of
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands being
provided on 31 December 2001. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$54,879,000 (2007: HK$55,517,000) of
such differences. No deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$172,517,000 (2007: HK$169,867,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Temporary differences arising in connection
with interests in associates and jointly controlled
entities are insignificant.

B (F#8)BRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA%5 3R Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2008

F2008F 6 H 30 HIEFE
13. Deferred Taxation (continued) 13. IEEBIE @)
(b) Company (b) ZAEAF
The components of deferred tax liabilities HEEEBERPEINELSE
recognised in the balance sheet and the 8 REXFERUAFEN
movements thereon during the current and prior BEWT
years are as follows:
Accelerated
tax
depreciation
niE Tax losses Total
BIEINE BBERE ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T BETFT

At 1 July 2006 —EEXRFtLA—H 115 — 115
Charged to income statement AU R 9 - 9
At 30 June 2007 —EEEFARA=TH 124 — 124
At 1 July 2007 22+ FtLH—H 124 — 124
Credited to income statement RAURZERAE A (32) (92) (124)
At 30 June 2008 —EFN\ERA=+H 92 (92) =

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FIE(&F#)BRAFA —ZZT/\FFH JRY
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
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14. Discontinued Operation

The Company entered into a disposal agreement to sell
its entire interest in packaging business of the Group. The
disposal was completed on 28 February 2008. Detailed
information of the disposal was set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 February 2008.

The results of packaging business for the period/year are
presented below:

14.

E ll‘\ ?\“I( % %?%

ARBFLHEHEAEENBERER
X% - AEHESHCR-ZEZNFZ
BZtNH=EK - BHEHEFENFE
EHHERARR-ZZNF-_A+N\H
EIJ/'\HZW °

BEEREBNARE FENEEN
T

Period ended Year ended
28 February 30 June
2008 2007
BE BZE
ZETIN\EFE —EELF
—A=+/\H ANA=1+8
IEEAR IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
et BT T B F T
Turnover B 7 483,349 728,870
Cost of sales SHER A (449,604) (687,128)
Gross profit ER 33,745 41,742
Other income Ha A 8 7,596 9,605
Selling and distribution
expenses HERDHHER (11,191) (18,161)
Administrative expenses THEHA (21,574) (23,178)
Other operating expenses Hih k& B H (2,129) (443)
Operating profit KRR 6,447 9,565
Net interest (expenses)/income FFRE(ZH), WA 9 (1,586) 29
Profit before taxation FREE AT R R 10 4,861 9,594
Taxation credit/(expenses) FIEWA (ZH) 12(b) 824 (1,138)
Profit for the period/year from a ZNHAR, EE & 1L K&
discontinued operation EBREENEZN 5,685 8,456
Net gain on disposal of a HEBKRIHEEER
discontinued operation FH 8,803 —
Total profit from a discontinued B IEEEEKELN
operation SR 14,488 8,456
The net cash flow incurred CHEMBATZEESR
by the disposed subsidiaries W
are as follows:
Operating activities KR (43,037) 46,455
Investing activities RETE 313,908 (17,457)
Financing activities Rl EE (3,104) 3,104
Net cash inflow FHERA 267,767 32,102

IBYd Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(EB)BRAT
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15.

16.

Profit Attributable to 15.

Shareholders of the Company

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
includes a loss of HK$21,108,000 (2007: HK$9,387,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

A2\ E) B R FE Ak it Fl

AATRREMENCSERETEREA
T B IEERR A B 21,108,000 TTHIEE
(=T : B¥9,387,0007T) °

Dividends 16. B8
2008 2007
—EBNE —ETEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
2007: Final dividend of HK$0.08 “EELF  ERARERE
per share paid during the year ~ SIRB¥0.08 T(ZEZ N
(2006: HK$0.07 per share) F:8RE¥0.07T) 19,357 17,001
2008: Interim dividend of HK$0.06 ~ —ZZN\F : B FHKRE
per share paid during the year ~ ERB¥0.06 T(ZEZt
(2007: HK$0.06 per share) F 8RB 0.067T) 14,517 14,517
33,874 31,518
2008: Final dividend proposed —EEN\F #EABEIRE
after balance sheet date of ZAREBREER
HK$0.09 per share BE0.09TT(ZEELEF:
(2007: HK$0.08 per share) FRE¥0.087T) 21,902 19,468

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
has not been recognised as liabilities at the balance
sheet date.

FEARBKEZRARE - WRER

=
HEHMAEMEER -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (&#&)ARAT —SENEER
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134

17. Earnings per Share

(a)

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is

based on the profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company of HK$118,099,000 (2007:
HK$109,882,000) and the weighted average
number of 241,961,165 (2007: 242,487,253)

17. BIKEF

(a)

¥ N

BERELXRBRIADREREES
& F 78 #118,009,000 T (= &
T+ & . 8 ¥109,882,0007T )
REAQABARAFERNEHITE
R 2Nk F198241,961,165

ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated B(Z & Z & F 242,487,253
as follows: BR) > SFEWMT :
2008 2007
—EBENE —EEAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company KA B R R AT 118,099 109,882
Attributable to: FER
Continuing operations BEREETR 101,469 101,836
Discontinued operation CRIEREER 16,630 8,046
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE(&#E)BRAT —ZSZTN\EER
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

FE2008%F 6 H30HIFE
17. Earnings per Share (continved) 17. SiRE R =
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is EREXREBRDRBERREMS
based on the profit attributable to shareholders & F 78 % 118,099,000 T (= &
of the Company of HK$118,099,000 (2007: T+ & . 8 ¥109,882,0007T )
HK$109,882,000) and the weighted average RERBDREAEEANSEHITE
number of 241,977,537 (2007: 242,851,320) IRz hn#E 39 8 241,977,537
ordinary shares in issue during the year after B(=Z & & t F: 242,851,320
adjusting for the effect of all dilutive potential BR) URAEAEBEE#HEER
ordinary shares, calculated as follows: ZEBRTARAE  STEWNT
2008 2007
—EBNE —EELEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company NNETD S eyl 118,099 109,882
Attributable to: FER:
Continuing operations BERSEER 101,469 101,836
Discontinued operation RIS K 16,630 8,046
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18. Fixed Assets

18. BEIE & &E

(a) Group (a) AEHE
Medium term
leasehold
buildings in
Hong Kong Long term  Medium term Plant,
and Freehold leasehold leasehold equipment,
leasehold properties buildings buildings furniture
improvements outside outside outside and motor
F#H8  HongKong  HongKong  HongKong  Construction vehicles
b £ KA BMRE A Inprogress BR i Total
R SiEng L £ b £ ERIE  fRRRE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT BT BT BT BEFT BT
Cost or valuation: BAES
At 1 July 2007 “ZETtELA-A 16,024 256,602 339 716,683 - 1,084,123 2,072,111
Exchange adjusiments ERAZ - 8,501 - 14212 3,589 ni 125,019
Additions £ 4814 136 - 740 26,076 11,218 42,984
Disposals e - - (339) (4.967) - (14,663) (19,969)
Relating to disposal of BEEDEER
packaging business E4 L - (265,239) - (126,942) - (541,554) (933,735)
At 30 June 2008 “E%\E/AZ1H 19,838 - N 626,726 29,665 610,841 1,287,070
Representing: f%:
Cost AR 8,973 - - 626,726 29,665 610,841 1,276,205
Valuation — 2000 i — Z5%%F 10,865 - - - - - 10,865
At 30 June 2008 “F5\ERAZ1A 19,838 - - 626,726 29,665 610,841 1,287,070
Accumulated depreciation: RiHiE:
At 1 July 2007 “EERLELA-A 3,763 96,506 189 263,694 - 695,649 1,049,801
Exchange adjustments EREE - 3,231 - 27,974 - 45,044 76,449
Charge for the year KEERE 1,095 1,894 8 17,028 N 36,359 56,384
Written back on disposals HELRE - - (197) (3,366) - (13,325) (16,888)
Relating to disposal of REEREER
packaging business £BER - (101,631) - (34,191) - (381,430) (517,252)
At 30 June 2008 “F5\ERAZ1A 4,858 - - 261,139 - 382,497 648,494
Impairment: i
At 1 July 2007 “EEZLELA-A - 6,220 - 220,621 - 102,186 329,027
Exchange adjustments EXgE - 206 - 6,435 - 4775 11,416
Relating to disposal of BEEDEER
packaging business E4 L - (6.426) - (84,974) - (106,961) (198,361)
At 30 June 2008 - :@s/\ﬁEﬂ 777777777777 - - - e - - 142,082
Net book value: RESE:
At 30 June 2008 “FF\ERAZHE 14,980 - - 203,505 29,665 208,344 496,494
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE(&#E)BRAT —ZSZTN\EER
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

18. BEIE & &E

18. Fixed Assets (continued)

Medium term
leasehold
buildings in
Hong Kong Long term  Medium term Plant,
and Freehold leasehold leasehold equipment,
leasehold properties buildings buildings furniture
improvements outside outside outside and motor
E%9H  HongKong  HongKong  HongKong  Construction vehicles
ik £ KA HMRE M8 Inprogress BR Total
Rk Rz ikl bl £ HRIR  RERRE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BETT BEFT BT BT BEFT BT
Cost or valuation: BAES

At 1 July 2006 “EERELA-R 11403 257,865 1,687 699,327 - 1,049,302 2,019,584

Exchange adjustments EREE - (1,263) - 23401 - 32130 54,268

Additions A 3,621 - - 326 - 13,040 16,987

Disposals LE - - (1,348) (6,391) - (10,349) (18,088)

At 30 June 2007 —¥%tERA=1H 16,024 266,602 339 716,683 - 1,084,123 2,072,111
Representing: r%:

Cost HAE 4159 60,858 339 716,683 - 1,084,123 1,866,162

Valuation — 1994 ftfE — -hAmE - 105,744 - - - - 195,744

- 2000 —25%%F 10,865 - - - - - 10,865

At 30 June 2007 - S - o 16,024 256,602 339 716,683 - 1,084,123 2,072,111
Accumulated depreciation: RitiE:

At1 July 2006 “EZRELR-R 3,007 98,854 857 201,657 - 646,555 972,020

Exchange adjusiments EnE - (437) - 13,844 - 17800 31,207

Charge for the year TEERE 666 3,089 83 15917 - 40,439 60,194

Written back on disposals HERRE - - (751) (3,724) - (9,145) (13,620)

At 30 June 2007 —BTtERAZTH 3,763 96,506 189 253,604 - 695,649 1,049,801
Impairment: A

At 1 July 2006 “EERELA-A - 6,251 - 215,262 - 100,092 321,605

Exchange adjusiments EXgE - (31) - 5,359 - 2,004 7,422

At 30 June 2007 3 0 | - 6,220 - 220,621 - 102,186 329,027
Net book value: FRESE:

At 30 June 2007 - S - o 11,261 163,876 160 242,368 - 286,288 693,943
At 30 June 2008, the net book value of fixed RZZEZENEXRA=1+H " Ug
assets held under finance leases amounted to EHEBRENEERESTEAS
HK$878,000 (2007: HK$372,000). 878,000 (= EFE L F : &

#¥372,0007T) °
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18. BEIE & &E

18. Fixed Assets (continued)

138

Office
equipment,
furniture and
motor vehicles

R R RE
HK$’000
BT T
Cost: RAE :
At 1 July 2006 —EEXFLA—H 9,424
Additions 1 545
Disposals HE (865)
ALBOJune 2007 =¥FtExAStE 9,104
Accumulated depreciation: ZEsHinE -
At 1 July 2006 —EERFELHA—H 8,328
Charge for the year REERE 533
Written back on disposals HEREE (869)
_At80Junez007 —#Bt¥~A=tR 7,996
Net book value: BRERE :
At 30 June 2007 —EELFARA=TH 1,108
Cost: BRAHE :
At 1 July 2007 —EE¥tE+tHA—H 9,104
Additions iR 425
At30June2008 —®®\F<AStE 9,529
Accumulated depreciation: ZEsHinE -

At 1 July 2007 —EEtHE+tHA—H 7,996
Charge for the year KEERE 479
_At30June2008 0000000 =¥T\FRA=+EH 8,475

Net book value: BRERE :
At 30 June 2008 —EETNERA=+H 1,054

At 30 June 2008, the net book value of fixed
assets held under finance leases amounted to

HK$191,000 (2007: HK$306,000).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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19. Leasehold Land 19. FHE LT i

Group
X EH
2008 2007
—BON\E —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETIT BT
At 1 July tA—H 54,729 50,457
Exchange difference B R 5,320 2,875
Additions R - 4,106
Amortisation ey (2,858) (2,709)
Relating to disposal of packaging BHESEER
business ES %51 (5,998) —
At 30 June ~B=+H 51,193 54,729
Current portion (included in debtors, RENMERD (BIEEEK
deposits and prepayments IR RERFERR
— note 26) — Wit 26) (2,791) (2,709)
Non-current portion FERBEI D 48,402 52,020
The Group’s leasehold land comprises: AEEZHE T hEIE
Group
£
2008 2007
—BEN\E —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBETIT BT
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: HEZEE L
Medium-term lease FREATE 2D 14,672 15,049
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: @ ziHE+ i :
Medium-term lease FREAFE Y 36,521 39,680
51,193 54,729

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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20. Intangible Assets 20. EREE

140

Group
AEE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
meE iz &zt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT BT T
Cost or valuation: RAESEE :
At 1 July 2007 and —EFtFtA—BR
30 June 2008 “FENFAASTA e 38809 53,523
Representing: REK:
Cost RAE 14,714 36,809 51,523
At directors’ valuation BEEN-NEZEEEDN
in 1972 {h1E — 2,000 2,000
At 30 June 2008 —EFNERA=+H 14,714 38,809 53,523
Accumulated
amortisation: BT -
At 1 July 2007 and —EFt+tFtA—BR
at3oJune 2008 . “®TNFAASTA S 38800 38,809
Impairment: BE :
At 1 July 2007 and “EEtFtH—HBR
__at30June2008 . “®S\FXAASHA 12589 - 12539
Net book value: BRER{E:
At 30 June 2008 —EENEARA=1H 2,175 — 2,175

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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22008 6530 HiEFE
. 4 3>
20. Intanglble Assets (continued) 20. ﬁ }éé
Group
TEHE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
meE iz &zt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT BT T
Cost or valuation: RAES EE :
At 1 July 2006 —EERFELHA—H 12,539 38,809 51,348
Addition through
acquisition of additional
equity interest in a FEBWEMEAREIM
subsidiary FEZR M8 hn 2,175 — 2,175
At 30 June 2007 —EEtERA=+H 14,714 38,809 53,523
Representing: RFE:
Cost RAE 14,714 36,809 51,523
At directors’ valuation BEEN-NEZFEEHDN
in 1972 & — 2,000 2,000
At 30 June 2007 —EFEtERA=+H 14,714 38,809 53,523
Accumulated St -
amortisation:
At 1 July 2006 —EEXE+LHA—H — 35,133 35,133
Charge for the year INEF E S — 3,676 3,676
At 30 June 2007 —EFtERA=+H — 38,809 38,809
Impairment: BiE :
At 1 July 2006 and —EFES-ELtA—H
at 30 June 2007 E-FELE
e #A=+8 12889 - 12539
Net book value: BREEE :
At 30 June 2007 —EFtERA=+H 2,175 — 2,175

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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20.

21.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Intang ible Assets (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the respective
cash-generating unit (CGU) is determined based on
a value in use calculation. This calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation are those relating to the discount rate,
forecast growth rates and the expected changes to
selling prices and direct costs during the period. The
discount rate used for the value in use calculation is
based on the prevailing bank’s borrowing rate offered
by major financial institutions which reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based
on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

Interests in Subsidiaries

20. ML EE

BEZRESHEIMERMDE - HE
REeELAEUNTEREERREER
BEFE ZEEEAZRERERER
ERREEERENMBRETE - 5
EEREESNIERRAFTER B
RE -HAEBHREERANERE
- stEERAEENTRRERRER
T BB IR 2 SR 1T B A REE M %
MERUARMTEENYERKBEE
kzReELEN 2 BERRE 2RITH
o BMRERFAEREATE - EE
REERANNECRRBEENRAS
MIERRELMETE °

21. MEBASIH#E xR

Company
EAT

2008 2007
—ETNE —EEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFIT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost E LRI AE 1,457,016 1,457,016
Impairment loss RIEEE (203,220) (203,220)
Investment in subsidiaries MEBARRE 1,253,796 1,253,796
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUWHT I A R FRIE 1,171,594 1,422,625
2,425,390 2,676,421
Amounts due to subsidiaries I N R FRIE (1,562,024) (1,468,457)
863,366 1,207,964

B (F#8)BRAF
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21.

22.

Interests in Subsidiaries (continueq)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are interest-free,

unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the subsidiaries are listed on pages 178 to 183.

Interests in Associates

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 A1 FE

21. MBASIH#ERE «

Y EAMBLARRBLARE - &
ERRRBEEEERR

EMBARINERFEINEI17T8EESR
183H °

22, BtE NS

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—BEN\E —ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEFiT BEF T
Share of net assets EBhFEEE 24,581 24,581

Details of the associates are as follows:

Place of incorporation

BEQTNERFINT

Percentage of

Name of company and operation equity holding Principal activities
AT &8 SRR RIERAESE FEER
Group Company
&R AT
Omeron Profits Limited* British Virgin Islands 50 — Dormant
REBHERAHS TEmex
Tepac Profits Limited” British Virgin Islands 50 — Dormant
KBAERRES Tmex
* Companies not audited by PKF * ZEQTFBHARERER(FB) S

HIE I

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (&#&)ARAT —SENEER
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BLF 2008 6 A30 HILFE
22. Interests in Associates (continued) 22, Bt ENTIHELE )
Financial position BAFS AR
2008 2007
—ETNE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT BT T
Total assets BEE 49,163 49163
Total liabilities wnas (1) (1)
Net assets FEE 49,162 49,162
Net assets attributable to the Group BRERAEBEZFEE 24,581 24,581
Results E 4
During the year, there was no turnover nor profit or loss NAREER ZZEANTWEBEERER
attributable to the Group. SRR EE -

23. Interest in a Jointly Controlled 23. X EEHIEREEZE

Entity
Group
A%E
2008 2007
—BON\E —EELHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Share of net assets EiFEE 63,268 59,921
Amount due from a
jointly controlled entity FE U AL [ 42 1B B8 SR 1B 50,575 7,867
The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is interest- ZEWHEEIESELEHEA RS - B
free, unsecured and repayable on demand. R ERESRANFERE -

IPi¥}  Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FIE(F#) BRAT —ZTT/\FFHK
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23. Interest in a Jointly Controlled
Entlty (continued)

Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:

23.

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

3 FEHERE

HEHZEHERMNERFINT

Percentage of

Place of equity holding

incorporation/ indirectly
Name of company operation B #ERH Principal activities
AT&TE il EE I BRE FEXH

Evergreen Oils & Fats Limited*  Cayman Islands/

(“Evergreen”) Hong Kong

MERE &8

Company not audited by PKF

Summarised financial information in respect of the

50 Blending and distribution of
edible oils, vegetable fats,

and shortenings

BER D SHEM BRI R

SEW::

) ZARFHAERER(FE)EFM

EBEX

BERAEEzHEEGER 2 UEE

Group’s jointly controlled entity is set out below: BIFEZHAT :
2008 2007
—EBINE —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Non-current assets IRBEE 16,239 17,267
Current assets RENEE 354,335 229,145
Total assets BEE 370,574 246,412
Current liabilities REIEE (241,958) (125,357)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,080) (1,213)
Total liabilittes #&® (244038 (126,570)
Net assets FEE 126,536 119,842
Net assets attributable to the Group FENAEEZFEE 63,268 59,921

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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23. Interest in a Jointly Controlled 23.

E ntlty (continued)

HEEHERER )

Financial position (continued) BAFEAR I (&)
2008 2007
—EBNE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBETIT JBEF T
Turnover =E 20 761,793 598,854
Profit for the year AF B F 6,694 5,816

Profit for the year

attributable to the Group BERAKEZAFERF 3,347 2,908

On 27 June 2008, the Group accepted the termination
notice from Hop Hing Holdings Limited for its edible oil
joint venture company, Evergreen, in Hong Kong.

AEER-ZZENFAAZ+EHES
EEEEZERERD MR IEHEE
(Evergreen) 2 &2 IE S /EBAI ©
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24. Available-for-Sale Financial

For the year ended 30 June 2008

220084 6 530 HIFFE

24, T EMMHBEE

Assets
Group Company
XEHE AAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EBEN\E —TTLF ZBEN\E —Z2TtHF
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BEFT BT BT
Listed equity securities, L% H{E
at market value
— in Hong Kong — BB 24 23 24 23
— outside Hong Kong — /o 226 211 226 211
250 234 250 234
Unlisted equity
securities, at cost FELHESHRE 24,262 29,001 24,262 24,262
Impairment loss BIERSIE (24,262) (29,001) (24,262) (24,262)
Club debentures, at cost EF{EH %A 787 787 — —
Impairment loss BiEEE (280) (280) = -
T 0T 50 e -
757 741 250 234
- 1
25. Inventories 25. &
Group
FEE
2008 2007
—BTAE —ETLE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Raw materials FRA R 135,820 121,256
Work in progress B A 16,139 29,280
Finished goods SRR 109,581 111,066
Inventories in transit EEEM 509 18,485
Packing materials R 10,788 9,644
Spare parts B 788 11,483
273,625 301,214

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited FIE(EB)BRAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA% iR Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2008

B F 2008 6 A 30 A 1Lt FZE
. 16
25. Inventories (continued) 25. B8 =)
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b) WHRBXIHZEESEDT
recognised as an expense is as follows: nF
Continuing operations IFEAEEET
2008 2007
—EBNE —EELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
EBETIT BT T
Carrying amount of
inventories sold ELFEZRAE 1,766,961 1,272,501
Write-down of inventories FERE 571 445
1,767,532 1,272,946
Discontinued operation BRI EE £
2008 2007
—EBBNE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT JBHF T
Carrying amount of
inventories sold EHEFEZREE 449,099 689,446
Write-down/(back) of inventories ~ fF&R{E, /() 505 (2,318)
449,604 687,128

IFi¥] Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (E#)BRAT —TTN\FFHK



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATS iR R bisE

For the year ended 30 June 2008

FE2008%F 6 H30HIFE
26. Debtors, Deposits and 26. FEWERFR - & RTER
Prepayments EY
All of the debtors, deposits and prepayments are FIERWERR - B RFENAKHEIFETE
expected to be recovered within one year. —FRE -
Group Company
FEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007

—BRN\E —E2TLHF ZBTN\E —ZTTLH
HK$’000 HK$'000 ~ HK$’000 HK§’000
EBETFT BEFT  EBETT W BETT

Total trade debtors FEWE SRR EEE 143,346 178,203 - —

Less: Allowance for doubtful & RIBEREE
debts (note 26 (b)) (K1:E 26(b) (1,828) (4,066) - —
141,518 174,137 = —

Other debtors, deposits and  HMWEWERF - 1RER

prepayments FEfIRK 92,460 81,625 872 510
Current portion of leasehold A&+t — KBS
land (note 19) (Hzt19) 2,791 2,709 - -
236,769 258,471 872 510
The aging of trade debtors (net of allowance for EWE SRR (NRRTRER)
doubtful debts) as of the balance sheet date is as REERAZRRIWOT :
follows:
Group Company
XEHE AATF
2008 2007 2008 2007

“EBEN\E —ZTLFE ZBTN\E —TTtHE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
BT BT  EETm BT

0 — 3 months EZ={EA 140,804 167,256 = —
4 — 6 months MEAREA 714 6,881 - —
Total trade debtors B E SRR EEE 141,518 174,137 = —
The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 5(a). AEBEZEEBREHNMFES @) °
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26. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see note

2(q)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, are as follows:

26.

FEWHRR « e R

Ko

BWEZRREBERE  — R
EEBRREREMRLE A
EERARSETRENHEY
B ERBRT  HERESE
SEHEPRERE S RA(RKH
2()) °

REEEREREEBEAND
DHRRREFZENT :

Group Company
F%E F248]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBEN\E —EEtF ZBEN\FE —IZTLtHF
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
EETFIT BEFr  EBEFT W BETT
At 1 July +A—H (4,066) (5,524) — —
Impairment loss
recognised ERIBEEE (991) (224) = —
Reversal of impairment
loss FEBERERBE 100 1,579 - —
Relating to disposal of REEREER
packaging business ES %21 3,266 — - —
Uncollectible amounts
written off MEET AT el £ 58 401 185 - -
Exchange adjustments B L% (538) (82) - —
At 30 June ~A=+H (1,828) (4,066) - —

At 30 June 2008, the amount of specific allowance
for doubtful debts was HK$668,000 (2007:
HK$642,000).

RZZBZENEXA=1TH #BE
RIFREHE ST A B 668,000
T(ZZEZ L F: B¥642,000
TT) °
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26. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

The aging analysis of trade debtors that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to

26.

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

FEWHRR « e R

Ko

TR N EEEmIRAE
HEZEFEHEWE 5 R IR

be impaired are as follows: DT :
Group Company
AEE AAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EBEN\E —ETHF ZBEN\FE —IZTtHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BEFT EBETIT BT
Current REIH 139,499 174,137 - —
Past due for less than
3 months BHOR=EA 2,019 - - -
141,518 174137 - —
Trade debtors that were neither past due nor REHRREERBEESR 2 EW
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for ESRM YAAPRIBEXE
whom there was no recent history of default. HEENEFE -
Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired BHENMERBEERBZ2RKES
relate to a number of independent customers that B BRZBELAEEERK
have a good track record with the Group. Based BHIEHENEE - BUTKE
on past experience, management believes that no HRAEGEEEZTESFTE RPN
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of % SEEHECEENELRE
these balances as there has not been a significant EXEE > FRBELENHIE
change in credit quality and the balances are still AEEWE - KREBRADTF
considered fully recoverable. The Group and the LERREZRAEIMIEZEN
Company held the following collaterals over these BHROT :
balances:
Group Company
AEE AAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“TEN\E —ZTLF ZBBN\E —ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T BETFIT BIF T
Properties LE 3 3,668 2,472 - —

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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B F 2008 6 A 30 A 1L F[E
. - - = 40 ry il
27. Financial Assets at Fair Value 27. EEBEAREEIR
Through Profit or Loss B EE
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EBNE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETIT BETT
Financial assets at fair value through LEREANEEIER
profit or loss — outside Hong Kong KIS EE — B - 2,922
The amount in prior year mainly represented Taiwan-listed tFESHEIEAR=-ZEN\F-AE
trading securities held by packaging business which was HENBEERERFAEENAELT
disposed of in February 2008. NRERFEZF ©
= Vsl =
28. Cash and Cash Equivalents 28. IRE RIS FEE
Group Company
XEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EBEN\E —TTHFE ZBIN\EFE —TTtE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT  EBEFIT W BETFrT
Cash on hand and at banks IR&RIETER 122,354 194,240 48,092 6,538
Time deposits EHEFER 409,727 98,843 306,843 35,415
532,081 293,083 354,935 41,953
Cash and cash equivalents which are denominated in a kAREEEEMBENINGEEYAENN
currency other than the functional currency of the Group ReRBEESEHFTERUET - BIR
entities are mainly denominated in USD, AUD and MYR. ERADEREN -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITFRRESHRTEFRAETFEZ
daily bank deposits rates. Time deposits are matured FERNREWMAE c EHERIIR=E
within three months and earn interest at the respective BREH  WiIRE B 2 EHERFIRER
short term deposit rates. BFE o
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22008 F 6530 HIEFE
41N EL
29. Bank Loans 29. SRITE
Group Company
AEHE EAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
Effective “EEN\E —TTLHE ZBBN\E —TTLF
interest rate  HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI EEFT BT BETFIT BT
Unsecured bank
loans EIKFIRITER  140% — 2.83% 212,000 142,104 30,000 10,000
The borrowings are repayable on demand or within one ERERERFG—FREE -
year.
The Group’s bank loans are mainly denominated in the REBZRITERRURNEETEHEFRE
functional currency of the Group entities they relate. HIThEE EHE B EE{y o
The Group's bank loans are variable-rate loans which REBZERITERAIHNRER 18
mainly carry interest ranging from Hong Kong Interbank NFEBETEHEIFRERERER0.50%
Offered Rate (HIBOR) minus 0.50% to plus 0.50% per EMEFNROLS0% (ZEZSLE: FB
annum (2007: HIBOR minus 0.50% to plus 0.50%). RITREZERERERZE0.50% ZMEF

L0.50%)5TE
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30. Creditors, Deposits Received 30. FETERER « EWFRER
and Accruals fE E

=
A

The aging analysis of trade creditors is as follows: ENESERRRIMTOT :
Group Company
AEE AAT
2008 2007 2008 2007

“EBEN\FE —TTtHE ZBEN\FE —ZTTtH
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000
EETIT BT  EBEFIT W BEFT

0 - 3 months ZEE={EA 146,887 213,044 - —
4 - 6 months Mz @A 683 23,343 = —
Over 6 months NEB UL 465 238 - —
Total trade creditors EE SR ELE 148,035 236,625 = —

Other creditors, deposits HMEMARR - BWES

received and accruals RESTER 69,113 84,624 9,724 6,035
217,148 321,249 9,724 6,035
Creditors, deposit received and accruals which are IAREEREEMBENINGEERAENN
denominated in a currency other than the functional EAERER  ClReREFEAFTER
currency of the Group entities are mainly denominated in DETHEN -
USD.
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31. Other Current Liabilities

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

31. HiWmEEE

Group Company
AEE AAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EBENE —ZTTHF ZBIN\FE —TTtHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EEFT EBFor  EEFT  BETT
Amounts due to associates JE{TEEE N T FRIE 23,093 23,093 - —
Employee benefit obligations {EEEF ARG
(note 32(b)) (K1t 32(b)) 4,831 4,896 - -
Obligations under finance  BEHEE
leases SRR 208 98 54 54
28,132 28,087 54 54

The amounts due to associates are interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand.

32. Employee Benefit Obligations

The Group has operated three defined contribution
retirement plans covering its employees in Hong Kong
and Taiwan; and operated two defined benefit retirement
plans covering its employees in Taiwan. Upon the
disposal of packaging business in February 2008, the
Group had no more defined benefit retirement plans.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plan are based on a specified percentage on
the monthly salary and completed years of service of
employees. The Group’s contributions under the principal
plan covering its employees in Hong Kong are charged to
the income statement.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

EABEAANERARE - BERKT
BRERAEHEE -

32. EEEAIERHE

FEERE-ERETBRAERERH
MEBRHRRRATERMNERGERE
RENTEERMNEAKE - EZFZN
F_RAHERBKERERR  AKEH
RERHERBARMAKEE -

REBHERHRFBRARTENERTIEZ
BENBAFERBRBEFEU-BER
DERE - EETET  AEENEK
BERERFIMEER -

BIE(&EE) BRLA
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Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

B Z2008% 6 530 HIFFE

32. Employee Benefit Obligations

(continued)

Under the defined benefit retirement plans, the
calculation of the retirement benefits to the employees
was based on years of service and average monthly
salary at the time of retirement. The Group’s contributions
to the defined benefit retirement plans were calculated
as certain percentages of salaries paid to employees and
charged to the income statement as incurred. The assets
of the plans were held separately from those of the Group
in a central fund administered by the relevant government
body in Taiwan.

In addition to the retirement plans operated by the
Group, the Group is required to contribute respectively
to Mandatory Provident Fund, central pension plans
and labour pension fund for certain Group’s employees
in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China and
Taiwan based on applicable rates of monthly salary in
accordance with government regulations.

The Group made contributions to two defined
benefit retirement plans that provided pension
benefits for employees in Taiwan.

Subsequent to the disposal of packaging business
in February 2008, the Group had no more defined
benefit retirement plans.

32. EERFIERE =

EEFEEMNRATET - BENRKE
FARE R FE KRN FII A FHt
B o AEERZERBANEINEARTD
REOBEBRHRNHFENE -T2 =5t
B UHBERRUSERTIAEM -
ZEFENEELFBASEERE M
EHAERBBTRFMEENPRE
ERBFHE -

BRAS SR B ER AL HOR ARG EISN - AREE TR
ARBBARG  ZEAFENSELL
R REERB  PEARAMNERS
BHNETEEDNHRTEFMELE
T PRABERETRAE -

AN 5% 6 6] 7 18 E 2B 4R AR R ET &
EHH - ZEHERESER
BRAREEA -

RZEBENF_AHEBLEER
¥X%%E AEEREREIMAERE
BRRRETEMERMER o
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32. Employee Benefit Obligations 32. EERMERE =

(continued)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans

(continued)

(i) The amount recognised in the balance

(a) EFEBABNKTE (#)

() REEERXPEHEERZ

sheet is as follows: Z2EEWTF -
Group
xEE
2008 2007
—EBNE —EZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Present value of funded EETH
obligations EERE - 35,595
Fair value of plan assets FEIEEANRER - (28,386)
Net unrecognised actuarial RER
losses REEE = (10,999)
— 1,210

(ii) Plan assets consist of the following:

(i) FEIEEBIFTIEHR :

Group
AEHE
2008 2007
—TEN\E —EELF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BETT
Cash Be - 23,386

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FIE(E#E)ERAF —ZZ/\FFH Y
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EiFE 2008 6 H30 HiLFE

32. Employee Benefit Obligations 32. EERMERE =
(continued)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (a) TEEHEEBIENKRTE (&)

(continued)

(iii) Movements in present value of funded (i) FEHEEFESHHEENE
obligations: L/
Group
TEH
2008 2007
—EBNE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETIT B F T
At 1 July tHA—H 35,595 32,149
Benefits paid by the plans Bt EIXFHEF (3,668) (1,246)
Current service cost BR 7% A A 709 1,029
Interest cost FAISYs %N 709 1,105
Actuarial losses BEEE 6,142 2,685
Exchange difference ERER 2,148 (127)
Relating to disposal of BREESLEER
packaging business E 251 (41,635) -
At 30 June ANA=+H - 35,595

IKY:] Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FJE (E#)BRAT —TTN\FFHK
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32. Employee Benefit Obligations

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

32. EERFIERE =

(continued)
(iv) Movements in plan assets (iv) EtEIEERIZE)
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—BTNE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
EETIT BETT
At 1 July +tB—H 23,386 19,103
Group’s contributions paid to EE@ETEMEL
the plans #HER 704 5,192
Benefits paid by the plans BB FHER (3,668) (1,246)
Actuarial expected return on BEEE
plan assets FEHA B 3R 455 666
Actuarial gains/(losses) BEWE(EE) 154 (273)
Exchange difference EREER 1,411 (56)
Relating to disposal of RHEEGHER
packaging business ES 2] (22,442) -
At 30 June NB=+H - 23,386
(v) Expenses recognised in the income (v) RIEHEREZEZTW
statement are as follows: T :
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—FENE —E2EtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Current service cost 7N FE IR A& AR 709 1,029
Interest cost F B B 7 709 1,105
Expected return on plan assets 2|35 E7EHi O 3R (455) (666)
Amortisation of losses i8R 85 261 356
1,224 1,824

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited FIE(EB)BRAR
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EiFE 2008 6 H30 HiLFE

32. Employee Benefit Obligations 32. EERMERE =
(continued)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (a) TEEHEEBIENKRTE (&)

(continued)

(v)  (continued) (v) (#&)
The expense is recognised in the following R ERERHBEZIA
items in the income statement: RUTEES
Group
TEH
2008 2007
—EBNE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETIT BETT
Cost of sales SHE A 783 1,345
Selling and distribution HER
expenses DHEE A 123 149
Administrative expenses THEHR 318 330
1,224 1,824
(vi) Historical information (vi) EFHEH
Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EBN\E —ETEHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETIT BT
Present value of the defined EREREA
benefit obligations STRE - 35,595
Fair value of plan assets FEEEARER = (23,386)
Deficit in the plan sTEINEE — 12,209

Experience adjustments arising it &8 &N

on plan liabilities HEES - 619
Experience adjustments arising FrEIEENEER
on plan assets FEES - 275
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32. Employee Benefit Obligations 32. EERMERE =

(continued)
(b) Short-term employee benefit (b) JHEHIETHEF
As at 30 June 2008, unclaimed annual leaves was RZBEZENERA=+H B
HK$4,831,000 (2007: HK$4,896,000) which was REMRBHEENSTEFRAS
included in other current liabilities (note 31). #4,831,000 T(ZEELF 1 &
# 4,806,000 70) (KfisE31) ©
33. Other Non-current Liabilities 33. HihFERENEE
Group Company
FEHE AAT
2008 2007 2008 2007

—BRN\E —E2TLHF ZBEN\E —ZTTLH
HK$’000 HK$'000 ~ HK$’000 HK$§’000
BETFIT BEFT  EBETT W BETT

Obligations under finance  BEHEMNERE
lease payable

— After one year but — —FREMFR
within two years BiE 191 98 45 54

— After two years but — MERZERFR
within five years Bz 318 82 - 45
Other payables HEM R - 174 — —

509 354 45 99

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 B (&F#)BRARA —ZZ/\FFH §IY
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34. Share Capital

34. k&
Number of
shares Nominal value
EHEE B mEE
‘000 HK$’000
Fhe BT
Authorised: EERA
At 1 July 2007 and at 30 June RZEZELFELA—
2008 ordinary shares of ARZEZENER
HK$1 each A=+HEREZE
RB¥A T 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTROHERAK :
At 1 July 2007 and at 30 June RZZEELFELA—
2008 ordinary shares of AR=—ZZFZENFER
HK$1 each A=t B8KRE
IR T 243,354 243,354

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

In year 2007, 1,393,000 ordinary shares were
acquired by the Group to reserve for the Group’s
share option scheme for the purpose of satisfying
the exercise of share options to be granted to
eligible employees. The Group did not acquire any
shares during the year.

Details of the unexpired and unexercised share
options at balance sheet date are set out in note
35.

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

B (F#8)BRAF

RZZEZLtE AEEHEBEA
1,393,000 REBER » LARE R
BRYFeEREECRNBREZ
1T ERBREST 8 215 -
AEBEAFEREBREBREY o

BRABRET A RBH R
RITREZ B IREF BRI N
35 °

AEEEREANERARR
RIEEEENFTRESE  tmi
BARREHEBERAEMETH
ERRGE  LARKFEABS
EmRRBEE UREERES
BENBEMA



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BATE$R R

34. Share Capltal (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its equity-debt ratio and cashflow
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines equity-debt ratio as
the ratio of the equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company to net debt. Net debt is comprised
of total borrowings less cash and short term funds
and marketable securities.

The equity-debt ratios at 30 June 2008 and 2007

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 A1 FE

34. EX @

AEBEBRERHERERBR
M kEE  ULEEsRRE
HBIERT TREFE2ESEEK
FHRHEFNERNRRTRNES
RREzEMEFE  LEEE
BRENSICHERRBELRA
o

AEEUEAEEBLER - BER
FERERERNMBRER
AEEERERERRERE - ER
o SESEFAEBLERER
ARRRREEEREFEEN
tlbx - FRERERERNER
T EHESRTERERS -

SEELR-FENEAS
=+AZEREBLENT:

are as follows:
Group Company
XEEH EAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\E —ZTLF ZBEIN\E —ZTtHF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFr BT T BT BEF T
Bank loans and overdrafts — & R{EIBHIRT
repayable within 1 year ERREX 212,000 142,104 30,000 10,000
Less: Cash and Cash BIEER
equivalents HE%5 (532,081) (293,134)  (354,935) (41,953)
Net liquid funds FREBES (320,081) (1561,030)  (324,935) (31,953)
Equity attributable to RAE
shareholders of the IR R AEML
Company R 1,254,912 1,111,710 1,180,654 1,235,457
Equity-debt ratio ERaEtE 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0
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Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

35. Equity Settled Share-based

Transactions

The current share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders on 23 May
2003 and subsequently amended and approved by the
shareholders on 18 April 2006. Pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may invite
(i) any employee and director (including non-executive
director and independent non-executive director) of any
company of the Group; and (ii) any employee of any
associated company (the “Eligible Employee”) to take
up options to subscribe for shares of HK$1 each in the
capital of the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate
the Eligible Employee and to allow them to participate in
the growth of the Company.

The exercise price per share is determined by the
directors and being not less than the highest of (a) the
average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the day of offer
of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day;
and (c) the nominal value of a share.

35. g BEEZX 5

BimBRES 8 ([BRETE DR=
ZEZFRA-TZAERREB I
REZZEXRFOATNBRETEER
REB - REBRESE  A2TES
ARBO)AEEEAQRZEARER
EEBRFITESKBYFATE
B) Ri)fEABEL A 2EAREETE
ERES WM TRBARRARAKPE
JRBHE — T2 IRAD BB AR AE -

ZBEREGFIHEEHBEERES &
HERBRERRNER -

BRBRORBEHESSE > EXE
FORUUABRBEBRE) @ BERHZE
BREz B EBAEEBBIMzE AR
BRARZERBHFHRTE S b)F
HZBEREER (M EREER B
ZEAREBERARZERBRHOKHER
(c)BRHEE °

B (&#8)BRAF
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35. Equity Settled Share-based

Transactions (continuea)

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Option Scheme is 24,335,416 which represents 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of
the approval of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
entittement for any Eligible Employee (not being a
substantial shareholder or independent non-executive
director) is that the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to
be granted in any 12 months period does not exceed
one per cent of the relevant class of shares in issue. In
the event that a grant of option is made to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company or any of their associate, each of their
entitlement of the underlying shares shall not, in 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant, (i) exceeds
0.1% in nominal value of the shares; and (ii) having
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million; unless
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantees shall inform
the Company together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant
within 21 days from the date of offer of option.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a

period of 10 years commencing on 23 May 2003 to 22
May 2013.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

35. g BEEZX 5

(#&)

RIEZBREFETFRITZRAED
ZEBREAEE243354168% 0 1588
RESTEIERMNBBNAQRAT S BITR
B210% - FHNEEKREE(EERRE
RBUFATESRN 2HE &S
ARITEREZEREZ - AREBEREE
ALtEA+-EAHBERECER
> MEBITRETRITROZEE
FEEACBTHBEEINRGZ1%
MBRERHEFETERRLBE LT
EEYHBBAR  RZBRERLER
At-EAZZERERE BHB K
BRREBRRAE EHABUSN  HOR
TEEREMESZARRMERT :
(EBARRMEMEZ0.1% ; (i)EER
878 5,000,000 7T °

EEARBEBREABR-T-XR
FEARRABAURZNBE -—TTFAR
AMEREMBIREZAE -

BRETEZATELAFENRES
fR ©
ZEREGTIERMATE  BH-=

E=FRAZ+=HE=Z—-Z=ZFHA
—t+=Hi-
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35. Equity Settled Share-based 35. Ui BEEZRXS
Transactions (continuea) (#%)
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Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

The terms and conditions of the options
outstanding at 30 June 2008 are as follows,
whereby all options are to be settled by physical
delivery of shares:

RZBENFARAZTHBORT
fE B8 IR A 2 AR IR R AR HL 5
mT > MAEBREGUERR
g :

Exercise Number of
Date of grant Grantee price share options
R B BIRA TEE R ERE
25 July 2006 Director HKS$ B# 4.50 2,200,000
—EEXFELA=+EAH =
25 July 2006 Employees HK$ B# 4.50 1,500,000
—EERFLA-TEHA (=]

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Vesting
conditions are subject to certain financial and
performance targets being met by the grantees
during the performance period for financial years
2005/2006 to 2007/2008, the grantees may, at
any time as may be prescribed by the BRC at its
discretion, be notified (the “Date of Notification”) of
the vesting of the options. Thereafter, the grantees
shall have an exercise period of up to 30 months
following the Date of Notification to exercise the
vested options in accordance with the terms of
their grant.

The options outstanding at 30 June 2008 was
3,700,000 (2007: 5,400,000) with an exercise price
of HK$4.50 (2007: HK$4.50). During the vyear,
1,700,000 (2007: Nil) options were forfeited and no
options were granted.

B (F#8)BRAF

BRERESTHEARERB
RRF-—REBR - BREZR
BIRERBSERAR-ZZER
F/ZEERFEEZTLF/
—EENFHBRFEEZRITHA
EIETHBRRBEBERR  #
BRATKESEMESHERE
ZEAEEERNE((HNEAH )
BREZFERUESEREZE
SROBE - RE& - BRASE
FEAESHEER=TMEAMNT
B8 FURBR T 2 RRITE
RISz IBIRHE -

RIEENERNA=Z+THZRT
FER#ES3,700,000 (ZEE
+ £ :5,400,0000) MITHEEBSH
B4 (ZEB2LF B
4.57T) c RAEE » 1,700,000

“ESEF E) BRECE
RBRM > NEBHETEABER
FE o
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 A1 FE

35. Equity Settled Share-based 35. Ui BEEZRXS
Transactions (continueq) (&)

RESEREMREHRZBRBHD
REE X DERERTZEREZ
REEMEE - RT2BRE
AREEDIRERIR — &8
HEERmEE -

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The

SEIE
~

estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on Black-Scholes
model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions BREAANBERRESE

Fair value at measurement date EEAZAREE HKS$ B 0.91 ;T — HKS B 1.21 T
Share price RE HK$ B 450 7T
Exercise price 1T1EE HK$ 7B# 4.50 T
Expected volatility FEHAR I 33.56%
Option life B8 AR A S R 2.5 years £ — 4.5 years
Expected dividends yield E IR B R E R 2.65%
Risk-free interest FERMEE 4.41% — 4.58%
(based on Exchange Fund Note) (BINEESZHE)

The expected volatility was based on the historic
volatility. The expected life used in the model

is based on management’s best estimate, after

EHREZEAARRENESRR
EEE EXPEAZETF
BORBEEEREERTTER

M TERFIRENRELEZR
EREEETE - BETRETDIRERE
Expected dividends are based on historical PREFE WARRZEET
dividends. Changes in the subjective input BERMEENREBEZMGE -
assumptions could materially affect the fair value

taking into account of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioral considerations.

estimate.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(F8)BRATF 167
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
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36. f#E

36. Reserves

Group (a) AEHEH
Property Investment  ESOP Share
revaluation revaluation  reserve option
Share  Capital  Surplus  reserve  reserve 81  reserve Exchange  General  Revenue
premium  reserve reseves MEEH REEE O BMRE O BRE  oreseve  resene  reserve Total
ROEE E4EE BERE fife fE  7EGE BF ERBE -BEE  GAEE it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS 000
EEFL BEFn BETn BETn BEFr BETr BEFn BEFn BETn BETn BEFR
TERLE
At 1 July 2007 tA-A 429,423 20,121 - 2817 167 (6,829) 569 (9554) 50,000 365576 868,356
Tt ERE
Change infair value of avallable- ~ EE AR
for-sale financial assets BESE - - — — 16 — — _ _ _ 1
RRAEENN
Equity settled share-based RRER
fransactions 135 - - - - - - 358 - - - 358
Released on disposal of REDEEREE
packaging busingss ZE — (18129 - (887 - - — 14,69 — 47001 14,698
Released on liquidationof s~~~ BE-5HE
subsidiary DEZER = 2003 - - - - - 951 - (1,052)
Transfer from revenue reserve  MELAmME
1o surplus reserves by HERARS
subsidiaries B - - BB - - - - - - (2873 -
Exchange differences EBAEHN
arising on translation HBEER
of financial statements EEZER
of foreign operations B - - - - - - - M%7 - — 4497
Proft aftibutable to shareholders AR FREE
of the Company il - - - - - - - - — 118099 118,099
fi=%%5x/3t
2006/07 final dividend paid ERERE - - - - - - - - — (19357 (19,37)
REE
Current year interim dividend paid ~ HERE - - - - - - - - = (14517)  (14,517)
Z§%0\5xA
At 30 June 2008 =tH 429423 - 23733 - 183 (6,829) 97 51,092 50000 463,069 1,011,558
Attrbutable fo BER:
KLAFR
Company and subsidiaries ENELT 429,423 VAN K] - 183 (6,829) 97 5004 50000 415415 964,876
Associates Beng - - - - - - - 972 — M9 %
Jointly controlled enty LEEHER - - - - - - - - — 13405 13405
i+t
At 30 June 2008 ~AZHE 429,423 - 23733 - 183 (6,829) Q7 51,052 50000 463069 1,011,558
168 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 MJE(E#)ARAT —ZSZT)\EER
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F2008F 6 H 30 HIEFE
= -
36. Reserves (continued) 36. 15%1% (4&
(@) Group (continued) (a) =*%E &)
Property Investment  ESOP Share
revaluation revaluation  reserve  option
Share  Capital  Surplus  reserve  reserve 81  reserve Exchange  General  Revenue

premium  reserve reseves  MIEEf; REEE  BRE 0 BRE  resene  reseve  resee  Total
RiEE AFRE BBEG fife fifE  FEbE fE  ERBE -BEE  GAEG At
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS 000 HKS 000
BETT  BEFT BRTT BEFT BETT BETT BETL BETT BETL BT BEFR

TEERE
At1 July 2006 tA-A 429,423 18,161 - 29,360 40 - — (245600 50000 280276 782,700
Net transfer from revenue DTl
reserve to capital reserve BRAER
by subsidiaries fEFE - 37 - - - - - - - 8547 -
Release on disposal of RENBLR
subsidiaries pEE: - (1,581) - (483) - - - - - 483 (1,581)
THEENEE
Change in fair value of avalable- ~ EEZA%
for-sale financial assets BEZE - - - - 127 - - - - - 121
RRAGENN
Equity settled share-based R AERE
fransaction R4 - - - - - - 569 - - - 569
Purchase of own shares for ~ AERIEE
Share Option Scheme EERS - - - - - (6,829) - - - - (6,829)
Exchange differences arising &SR
on translation of financial SHREM
statements of foreign EEZER
operations B - - - - - - - 15006 - — 15006
Profit attributable to KLAFRR
shareholders of the Company ~ FEA5EAI - - - - - - - - — 100882 109,882
#=2%8/2A
2005/06 final dividend paid EXRHRE - - - - - - - - — (7001 (17,001)
Current year interim dividend ~~ HAEE
paid HHRE - - - - - - - - = (14517)  (14,517)
CERLE
At 30 June 2007 AAZTH 429423 20,127 - 28,877 167 (6,829) 569 (9554) 50,000 365576 868,356
Attrbutable to SRR
9N
Company and subsidiaries ENELT 429,423 19,869 - 28817 167 (6,829) 569 (8582 50,000 311260 824,763
Associates Beng - 298 - - - - - 972 — 34249 3353
Jointly controlled enty LEEHER - - - - - - - - — 1005 10,088
TERLE
At 30 June 2007 AAZTH 429,423 20,121 - 28877 167 (6,829) 569 (9554 50,000 355,576 868,356

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 FIE(E#)ERAR —ZZN\FFH §Y
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
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36. Reserves (continued)

36. f#E =

(b) Company (b) ZAAF
Investment Share
revaluation option
Share General reserve reserve Revenue
premium reserve REEf R reserve Total
RiE —-RitE Bt B Wikt At
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000
BEFT BEFR BETT BT BETR BEEFT
At 1 July 2006 “EENELE-A 429,423 50,000 40 - 552,968 1,082,431
Change in fair value of available-for- ~ TEHENEHER
sale financial assets PANTHEEY £ - - 126 - - 126
Equity settled share-based BRRAEENURAA
fransaction EBNRS - - - 569 - 569
Loss for the year REEFE - - - - (9,387) (9,387)
2005/06 final dividend paid =220 /ENERERE - - - - (17,035) (17,035)
Current year interim dividend paid ~ RAEEDRBRE - - - - (14,601) (14,601)
At 30 June 2007 “FFtERAZTE 429,423 50,000 166 569 511,945 992,103
At 1 July 2007 ZERLELA-A 429,423 50,000 166 569 511,945 992,103
Change In falr value of avallable-for- Wt HENBBEE
sale financial assets PANTHEEY £ - - 16 - - 16
Equity settled share-based BRAEENURAA
fransaction EBNRS - - - 358 - 358
Loss for the year REERE - - - - (21,108) (21,108)
2006/07 final dividend paid H-227/5tERERE - - - - (19,468 (19,468)
Current year interim dividend paid ~ RAEERHRE - - - - (14,601) (14,601)
At 30 June 2008 “FF\ExA=1A 429,423 50,000 182 927 456,768 937,300
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2008 MJE(E#)ARAT —ZSZT)\EER
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36. Reserves (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Sections 48B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises mainly the
cumulative retention of income according with the

Taiwan regulations.

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and statutory public welfare fund.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises, foreign investment
enterprises in Mainland China are required to
transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation,
as determined under accounting principles
generally accepted in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC GAAP”) to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance of the reserve is equal
to 50% of their registered capital. During the year,
appropriations were made by the subsidiaries to
the reserves as determined under PRC GAAP.

Property revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve has been set up and is

dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for fixed assets in note 2(f).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

36. f#E =

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R iaE

FERROEERDZEB(QF
1RBI)E 48BIRFTEEE -

BX#E

EXRBEIZRARBEELNZR
BREER -

BERHE

BERREBELIERBRLABER

EEATRE ©

RIB(EEETFE)  EREKX
ERIERECEYER(PE
AREMBEGFERIIET DR
10% MIBRBL B R R B A A E R &R
#E BEZBRBENESRESR
HMERNS50% BIE o KFER
MEBLAACIR(PE AR
Bl & 5T % B ) A& 3 AKX 0 B A & f
& o

YEELHE

MRELEERBHE20 PR
ZEEEES T HEMMLRE
o

BIE(&EE) BRLA
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F2008F6 5 30 AL FE

36. Reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of
the available-for-sale financial assets held at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies in note 2(m).

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve comprises the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the Share Option Plan for the purpose
of satisfying the exercise of share options to be
granted to eligible employees. The application of
the ESOP reserve is governed by Sections 49H of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the fair value of
equity settled share options granted to employees
and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2(1)(iii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(d).

General reserve
The general reserve has been set up by transfer of

revenue reserve in previous years according to the
resolutions of the Board of directors.

36. f#E =

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

HMIE (&R BRAA

REEHE

REEMRBEEREERRTHE
MAHEENBREEZQIAE
ESENRTFE - BREME
2(m) 2SR MERRE -

ETHBRELRMEE

ETBRREIRFEEE/BR
BERET  ATEBREMER
BRESEBARQRACHITR
MZBENRE - ZREZEAZ
BB(R ARG ) FEAHR AT B

o

BRERE

BRERBEERTEIZEBR
BEAREE ZHEREBENS
@)(t)(iii) rE 2 T BERMER

Ex
ERRFEEERTEBIERDN
MBBERMEEZELEZRE - &
EERBH T 200) TR 2 EHE
RMEIE o

— R

—REBRESERUAFER
B2 WS EERA -
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

FE2008%F 6 H30HIFE

= .

36. Reserves (continued) 36. 1ﬁ%1ﬁ (%)

(x)  Revenue reserve (x) WeEstEE

The revenue reserve of the Company at 30 June ARRR-_ZEENEASA=1H
2008 amounted to HK$456,768,000 (2007: 2 Wi & 18 B 78 ¥ 456,768,000
HK$511,945,000). After the balance sheet date T B E £ FE OB K
the directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.09 511,945,0007T) - REEH % -
per ordinary share (2007: HK$0.08 per ordinary ESTERRBCAREREAS
share), amounting to HK$21,902,000 (2007: BEBRBECOT(ZEEL
HK$19,468,000). The dividend has not been F:EREBERB®8T)
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. g XE B B #21,902,0007T

(ZZEZ L F : B%19,468,000
o) e ZRAEAREEBER

BBE-
37. Commitments 37. *iEIEH
(a)  The Group had the following commitments not (a) FTEBEZEBBUTHIEEER
provided for in the financial statements at the R EREKP !
balance sheet date:
Group
AEEH
2008 2007
—EBNE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Authorised capital expenditure EHUER BTN ZER
and contracted for B 68,645 5,085
Authorised capital expenditure EHUEERFTNZER
but not contracted for X 11,319 72,500

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited HIE(F8)BRATF 173
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
B F 2008 6 A 30 A 1L F[E

37. Commitments (continued)

(a)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

(continued)

On 25 January 2007, Lam Soon (China) Holdings
Company Limited (“Lam Soon (China)”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, agreed
with the Qingzhou Government that Lam Soon
(China) undertook an investment project in the
Qingzhou City. The investment project included
the establishment of a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise, named as Lam Soon (Shandong)
Food Company Limited, in Mainland China for the
development of the food business, acquisition
of the land use rights and the construction of
manufacturing and storage facilities. The projected
investment amount of the investment project
will be approximately HK$113.9 million of which
HK$34.2 million was incurred and HK$68.4 million
was contracted for but not paid during the year.

At 30 June 2007, the Group committed to supply
2.3 million aluminum cans to a customer in Taiwan
at a fixed price. Such commitment was covered
by a bank guarantee issued to the customer,
which amounted to approximately HK$1,645,000.
Subsequent to the disposal of packaging business
in February 2008,
commitment.

the Group had no such

At 30 June 2008,
non-cancelable purchase orders for certain

the Group has several

materials with its suppliers with an amount of
HK$196,548,000 (2007: HK$165,484,000).

37. ®iEIEH =)

(a)

B (F#8)BRAF

(&)

R-ZZE+F—-A=-+HHB K
ARIZEENMBARMIE(FE)
ERERABR(EIE(FRE)DE
EEMNBFHE  EFMNTET
—REEAB - MWE(FE) ZRE
BEEABERPEKRERL—E
SEBELE EAFMEEALRE)
EmBERAT UBRERME
i§~ BEIMEARERERZEE
BERE REBEZRERE
H%,%’\Jz%;ﬂﬁsﬁs,goo,ooo;c B
AR5 34,200,000 T B E X &
FA K 8% 68,400,000 THBEFT K
BARREEEZNNEEE -

R-ZEBEELFANA=1+H » A&
EEH-AEEFEESH  UE
E {8 #% {4 F& 2,300,000 F $83 % -
AEEBRREENOEREFR
HIRITIER - MERSENRB
#1,645,000t ' BRRR=-ZFZF
NFEZAHEQBEERELU
% REENEILBRIE

EE

RZZBEBENEXNRA=+H" &
EEEMERE LSRR
HWERBE é%ﬁ%;&ﬁ%
196,548,000 T (= 2F+ : B
165,484,000 75) °
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38. Related Party Transactions

The Group had the following material transactions with its

For the year ended 30 June 2008
22008 6530 HiEFE

38. AAEANTHIRX D

REEAEBEUTEREBREALH

related parties during the year: x5
Related party Nature of transactions Notes 2008 2007
FREANL XHMHE Mt —BBN\E —EBLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEFiT BT
Jointly controlled entity Purchases of small package oil (i) 5,787 3,934
L [E 4= HIE B BE/NEERE
Sales of aroma oil (i) 135,940 56,117
BWRHEE
Bottling and refinery income of (i) 37,593 34,838
small package oil
NEERBEERBEREA
Management fee income (iif) 2,000 2,000
EEEBWA
Royalties received for the use (iv) 13,211 10,384
of trademarks
EEEAREERA
Bank guarantee at 30 June v) — 32,362
RAAZ=+ BRITIER
Sales of detergent (vi) 3,611 3,131
BEAmMEE
GIMC Limited (“GIMC”) Management fee expenses (vii) 4,417 3,702

EEEX

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in
Notes 11, 23, and 31.

Notes:

(i) Purchases of small package oil were carried out at cost
plus a percentage of profit mark-up.

(ii) Sales of aroma oil was made with reference to the
market price.

(iii) Bottling and refinery income of small package oil and

management fee income were determined on the basis

of the cost and the amount of services performed by the

Group.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Mzl 28R AREAMARE
ATHIRS °

) BESEERMELRAMAEES
AR AT -

(i) EWOHHEE R RBHISERET -
PEERHEERBRUAREES

WA BB R AR A EE AR
BRI MEE o

(il

BIE(&EE) BRLA
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For the year ended 30 June 2008
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38. Related Party Transactions

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Under the trademark license agreement, the royalties
received for the use of the trademarks are calculated
based on a percentage as may be agreed between the
parties from time to time of the gross sales value of
licensed products sold by the licensee within Hong Kong
and Macau.

The Group had two guarantees issued to banks to
secure banking facilities of a jointly controlled entity at
30 June 2007. There was no such guarantee as at 30
June 2008..

Sales of detergent was made with reference to the
market price.

A service agreement and a supplemental service
agreement (together, the “GIMC Services Agreement”)
were entered into between the Company and GIMC
Limited (“GIMC”), a subsidiary of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”) on 27 June 2003 and 17
January 2006 respectively, for provision of general
management services to the Group by GIMC for a term
of three years from 1 July 2005.

In the event that the aggregate service fees payable
by the Company to HLCM or any of its associated
companies for the provision of similar services, if any,
exceeded the annual cap of HK$10,000,000 during any
of the three financial years ended 30 June 2006, 30
June 2007 and 30 June 2008, the Company would be
required to re-comply with the Listing Rules, including
seeking the independent shareholders’ approval.

38. FEHEANTHR S @

BeE - ()

(iv)

(vi)

(i)

B (F#8)BRAF

BEEAREERARREEEER
GE - UBEEREEEERIEMH
ETAERERNAHESRIZRET
BAOEFN -  KETBESXRAEES
BETEHENR -

AEBR=ZZZLFAA=ZTHBIR
TREMEER  LWEFBLREZES
EREIGRITEER R-ZZNF
AAZ=ZTH  REBEWEILIRER -

BRAMEERERMSERET -

AAEGIMC Limited (TGIMC]) » —
f Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad (THLCM1)IMB AR » ER
TEE=FRATEHRIEER
F—A+tBARIRT L — B REHE
& — 191 7 15 5% (5 38 GIMC BR 15 1
#]) BGIMCAAXREBR-_ZZTH
FLtA—REBRHAH=F2—RE
BRR# o

ARARERZFRMBE-ZERF
RAA=t+H - =ZE2LFARB=TH
REZZBZENFAAZTHLEZ@ANRR
FE)AFHLCM HEE[HE QT
FRZALELURTS (008 FR B 2 IR 75
= F#iBFE £ R B 10,000,000
T ANRSAETHET LHRA
BESREIRRZHLE -
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39.

40.

Comparative Figures

As a result of the disposal of packaging business, which
was reported as a discontinued operation in the financial
statements in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations”, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted or reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.

Ultimate Holding Company

The directors consider the ultimate holding company as
at 30 June 2008 to be Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia.

39.

40.

For the year ended 30 June 2008
Z2008% 6530 HIEFE

PLB S

RB(EBUHREERDESFH5EE
ENFRBEENRLEE | HES
REREBCRPBHERACKLES
EBHIE - Bt ETHREFCOLEE
HARNEDH  UWNERFNE2RT

e

EERAR-_ZST/\FERA=+HBE
KRR A B BAHong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad @+ —RIA B R AT
MLz AT o
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SUBSIDIARIES i BAT]

At 30 June 2008
200846 530 H

The following list contains particulars of subsidiaries at 30 June

2008:

Issued and fully
paid up capital

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

RIZEBEZENER
T

Effective
percentage of

A=+H EWBLAGIEEM

Name of company EETR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
ABEH BRZBRE AR EE I REFFEHIL TEEH Viird
Group Company
X%E FuiF
Asian Dragon Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Licensee of factory canteen
B2 o IRREHNREE
Atlantic Techvest Limited HK$100 Cook Islands 100 100 Management services
BE1007T BnEs BRRH
Bio Trading Limited US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 - General trading
E3 REERRES —-REZ
Chen Hing Hong Limited HK$100,200 Hong Kong 100 — Dormant
ERTAERAH ##100,200 7T 5k TEex
F.P. Trading Limited HKS$1 British Virgin Islands 100 - Dormant
BEIR REERRES EEER
Flourtech International Holdings ~ HK$36,000,000 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Investment holding
Limited ## 36,000,000 HEBEBRES REZR
Gladko Industries Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
EREXERAT B2 i REER
Global Flour Trader Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong 100 - General trading
BHERESEBRAA 75 10,000 7T ) -RES
Guangzhou Lam Soon Food HK$10,000,000 People’s Republic 66 — In liquidation (a)+(c)
Products Limited #%10,000,000 7T of China BEH
ENBERRERAH hEARKANE
Guangzhou Lam Soon HK$21,000,000 People’s Republic 100 — Processing and trading of (d)

Homecare Products Limited

ENEIEEZRRERAT

7% 21,000,000 7T

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

of China
hEARLNE

B (F#8)BRAF

detergent products

RERERERE



SUBSIDIARIES i BAT]

Issued and fully
paid up capital

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

At 30 June 2008
2008 F6H30H

Effective

percentage of

Name of company E2#TR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT ER BRZRAE AR EE REFFENIL TEEH lif33
Group Company
A5E  Fiq
Hong Kong Flourtech Limited HK$1,000,000 Hong Kong 100 — Trading and manufacturing
E5RRERAT ¥ 1000000 EE B RAE
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of flour products
BRENBERAT HK$100,000 o BHERES
Deferred shares
HK$10,000,000
LER
7##100,000 T
EER
7#10,000,000 7T
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$5,000,000 People’s Republic 100 - Importing, processing and (d)
Company Limited 5,000,000 7T of China trading of flour products
IEHPIBEEHERAT hEARKANE N RERENERES
Koon Bow Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 - Property holding
BEERAR B2 s NERE
Kwok Wah Hong Flour Company  HK$1,000,000 Hong Kong 98 — Dormant
Limited B#1,000000C EE TEax
EEERTERDA
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited 1E7% KBERRHE REER
Lam Soon Ceroil Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
B AR A B2 o REER
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding
Laboratories Company ESS KBERRHE REER

Limited
HIEEZERRERAT

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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SUBSIDIARIES i BAT]

At 30 June 2008

200846 A30H
Place of
Issued and fully  incorporation/ Effective
paid up capital establishment percentage of
Name of company E2#TR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT EH BRZRAE HAMREEHE REFFENIL TEEH Hi
Group Company
A5E  Fiq
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring HK$2 Hong Kong 100 - Trading of detergent
Laboratories (Hong Kong) BT 5B products
Company Limited BEEMES
HIEEREEME(FE)ERAA
Lam Soon Distribution Agency ~ HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — General trading
Limited BE2T BE —-REZ
BIEmEREERAR
Lam Soon Edible Oils Company ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
Limited EY REBEARES REER
Lam Soon Edible Qils HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
(Guangdong) Limited B2 T % REZR
BB (BR)ERDF
Lam Soon Food Industries (BVI)  HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
Limited 118584151 REEBRRES REZR
Lam Soon Food Industries Ordinary shares Bermuda 100 100 Investment holding (b)
Limited HK83,228,315 BERE REZR
Convertible
preference shares
HK$25,000,000
Rk
83,228,315 7T
ARRELR
7 25,000,000 7

ik{l] Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited MIE(EB) BRAT



SUBSIDIARIES i BAT]

At 30 June 2008

20086 A30H
Place of
Issued and fully  incorporation/ Effective
paid up capital establishment percentage of
Name of company E2#TR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT EH BRZBE HAMREEHE RERFTRIL TEEH Hi
Group Company
A5E  Fiq
Lam Soon Food Supply Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Manufacturing and
Company Limited HK$1,000 BB distribution
HIEREmEEERAR Deferred shares HERDH
HK$500,000
Rk
B#1,000 7T
EER
7% 500,000 7T
Lam Soon Intellectual Property  US$1 Cook Islands 100 100 Trademark holding
Limited EY MR#S BERE
Lam Soon International Limited ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding
3 RBARRES REER
Lam Soon International Trading ~ HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — General trading
Limited B2 BB —-REZ
BIRERESBRAR
Lam Soon Management HK$2,000 Hong Kong 100 100 Management services
Services Company Limited B 2,000 58 EERH
Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries HK$2 Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited BT & REER
HIE(BB)IEERAT
Lam Soon Properties HK$2 Hong Kong 100 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited B2 T ) REER
Lam Soon Realty Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 - Property holding
BB ERR A B2 B WERE
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food US$5,113,100 People’s Republic 100 — Importing, processing and  (a)+(d)
Company Limited 5,113,100 % 1t of China trading of flour products
BIR(LR)RRERAF FEARLNE O RERANERES

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited FE (&%) BRAT 181



SUBSIDIARIES i BAT]

At 30 June 2008
200846 530 H

Issued and fully
paid up capital

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Effective
percentage of

Name of company E2#TR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT ER BRZRAE AR EE REFFENIL TEEH lif33
Group Company
A5E  Fiq

Lam Soon Silos Investments HK$2 Hong Kong 100 - Investment and trading

Limited B2 T EE REKES
BEERREERAT
Lam Soon Systems Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 - Provision of Internet services
HIEZRERAR B2 B REEHARS
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands 100 — Trademark holding

2ET NR#E BREE

Lam Soon Trading Company, HK$500,000 Hong Kong 100 100 General trading

Limited B#e00000T BB —-RES
HIEEZBRAH
L S Food Investments Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Dormant

BE2T B RS

LS Food Supply (Macau) MOP$25,000 Macau 100 - Trading, wholesaling,

Company Limited BRI 025000c RP retailing, agency and food
LSRmtEGRM)ERAT supplying

g5 ##% - TE AER
RmfitE

LS Golden Oils & Fats Limited “A”" ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding

HK$185,000,000
“B” ordinary shares
HK$9,900,000
“C” ordinary shares
HK$5,100,000

[AIEBR

781 185,000,000 7T

[BIEER
719,900,000 7T

[CIEER
785,100,000 7T

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

RBERRES

B (F#8)BRAF

RERR



SUBSIDIARIES i BAT]

Issued and fully
paid up capital

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Effective

At 30 June 2008
2008 F6H30H

percentage of

Name of company E2#TR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT EH BRZRAE AR EE REFFENIL TEEH lif33
Group Company
A5E  Fiq
LSO Investments Limited HK$85,600,000 British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding
85,600,000 EEBEBRHEES REER
M.C. Packaging (B.V.l) Limited ~ HK$2 British Virgin Islands 97 — Investment holding
B2 REERARES REER
M.C. Packaging Offshore HK$8,400 British Virgin Islands 97 97 Investment holding
Limited B 8,4007T REERRES REZR
Ravensgate International Limited  HK$200 Hong Kong 97 - Investment holding
#2007 5B REER
Richly Choice Development USs$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee services
Limited 1% REERRES REEERS
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 People’s Republic 100 - Importing, processing and (d)
Company Limited 27,500,000 £ T of China trading of flour products
feOfIBEHERAR PEARLNE O RERARERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo US$9,500,000 People’s Republic 89 - Provision of silo facilities (c)
Company Limited 9,500,000 7T of China REFARYE
fOREFRERAR hEARRAE
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Qils  US$12,000,000 People’s Republic 100 - Manufacturing, processing (d)
Company, Limited 12,000,000 7t of China and trading of edible oils
RYFIEREERA R hEARLHE RE-BERRBES
Swamex Food Service Limited ~ HK$400,000 Hong Kong 100 100 Trading of food products
HXRMBRAR ##5 400,000 7T E5E REmE
Notes: et -
(a) Companies not audited by PKF. (@) ZEATFARGERER(FB)ETMEE
FrEER o
(b) The place of operation of this company is in Hong Kong. (b) FZATIME XM REE
(c) The subsidiaries are registered as equity joint ventures under () ZERARBRPEARAMNBEEEZUNEGESE
PRC Laws. hEZRTM-
(d) The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign (d) ZENRNBETPEARENEEEAZE RS

companies under PRC Laws.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

MDA R EEEM -

BIE(&EE) BRLA



5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A FEIFEIRE

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for

FEEBELEVRFE HENXE EE

the last five financial years/period are as follows: REBEHENT :
(Note a) (Notes a & b) (Note c¢)
(Kt a) (Kizt aR b) (&t ¢
1.7.2007 1.7.2006 1.7.2005 1.1.2004 1.1.2003
to £ to & to B to & to &
30.6.2008 30.6.2007 30.6.2006  30.6.2005 31.12.2003
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EETFIT BT BT T B F T B F T
Results £
Turnover =E -0 2,577,719 2,298,205 2,237,058 3,054,627 2,036,362
Operating profit before RINBRF R
interest, taxation, S BB
depreciation and E R
amortisation Sl 174,742 170,519 197,360 232,675 132,971
Profit attributable to R SR B
shareholders gl 118,099 109,882 102,989 85,125 38,235
Assets and liabilities ZHEREBE
Non-current assets FRBEE 644,612 846,702 869,109 908,870 967,137
Net current assets FRBEE 628,741 361,687 258,037 166,856 64,843
Minority interests DR RER (16,888) (85,517) (85,385) (79,503) (66,159)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1,553) (11,162) (15,707) (56,152) (99,305)
Shareholders’ equity IRRER 1,254,912 1,111,710 1,026,054 940,071 866,516
Notes: Vorzam
(a) The effect of adopting HKAS 17 has been adjusted to the (@) BEEE HELHREKRED B2 RE
opening balances of fixed assets, leasehold lands and debtors, R —EENFE——HR-ZZEERE+
deposits and prepayments as at 1 January 2004 and 1 July B—BzHU# 2 /ERARE ) URM
2005. No restatement of other comparative information has HaEEEHENE Lt EE - AT
been made as the amounts related to 31 December 2003 could EE-E+-_HA=+—HWEMTHERZE
not be reasonably determined. RRESEMFE  HMUZEERLREE
5o
(b) On 3 December 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company (b) R-EZENE+-F=H > AQAQZEES
passed an ordinary resolution to change the financial year BB —IELTERER KN REELS
end date of the Company from 31 December to 30 June EHE-ZEENE U BEERR T+
commencing from the year 2004. The reason for the change is =+—HMAANAB=1tH -EXRAQTZE
to align the financial year end date of the Company with that of BEE2RERANDAERESHERAER AT Hong
its ultimate holding company, Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad 2 Bf B &
Berhad. As a result, the financial period covered the period from EoRHI AMBEECsEEHER-2Z
1 January 2004 to 30 June 2005. NE-—A—BZE=ZFRF~A=1+H -
(c) The effect of adopting SSAP 12 (revised) has been adjusted to (©) IEERIIE  HE S EEREDS  WSHER

184

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

the opening balances of deferred taxation, interest in a jointly
controlled entity, revenue reserve and minority interests as at 1
January 2003, the results and movements in exchange reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2002. No restatement of other
comparative information has been made as the amounts related
to prior years could not be reasonably determined.

PERFREENR -_EE_ER-_ZBE=F—
A—HzHMY#&8REE_22_F1+_A1
St-RLFEZRERERREESR 2
BEERAE  URREACEIT2EHER
ZRE 12K oHE - EREFHMTLERZ
ERARESEMTE  HUZEERILRE
Rl

HMIE (&R BRAA
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